
Sierra County Commission 
Sierra County Commission Chambers 

1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday, September 16th, 2025 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO MEETING VIA: 
(http://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897) 

(https://www.youtube.com/@SierraCountyCommission) 
 

Call to Order: 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 
 
Roll Call: Travis Day-Chairman   Amy Whitehead-Clerk 
  James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair   Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
  Hank Hopkins-Commissioner  Amber Vaughn-County Manager 
 
Pledge Of Allegiance 
 
New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures.  
 
 Introduction of Guests  
 

I. Approval of Agenda: 
II. Approval of Minutes: 

A. Regular Meeting-August 19th, 2025 
III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes 
IV. Consent Agenda: 

A. Resolution No. 2025-71 Accounts Payable  
B. Resolution No. 2025-72 Indigent Claims 
C. Claim of Exemption 25-003 (Horak) 
D. Claim of Exemption 25-004 (Taylor) 

V. Presentations/reports: 
A. Years of Service Awards  
B. Department Reports 
C. Arevon Energy – Proposed Solar & Storage project in Sierra County 
D. Fairgrounds Project Update - Pluma 
E. Opioid Remediation Collaborative Update      

VI. Board of Finance: 
A. August Reconciliation 

VII. Old Business:  
A. Amended Sierra Vista Hospital Joint Powers Agreement 

VIII. New Business: 
A. Road Closure Request-Spaceport Authority-Unmanned Aircraft Test  
B. Record Destruction -Treasurer 

IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurements:  

http://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897


A. Intergovernmental Agreement Between Doña Ana and Sierra County for the Housing of 
Adult Detainees   

B. Amendment to Contract Between Doña Ana County and Sierra County  
C. Mutual Aid Agreement Between U.S. Army Garrison, White Sands Missle Range, NM & 

Sierra County  
D. Work and Financial Plan between Sierra County and APHIS-WS FY 25/26 
E. Transportation Project Fund Grant Agreement between NMDOT and Sierra County  
F. Amended Opioid Remediation Collaborative Joint Powers Agreement  
G. RY Construction – Poverty Creek Fire Department  
H. Approval of Unauthorized Purchase-Rescue Tactics  

X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations: 
A. Resolution No. 2025-73 FY26-Budget Adjustment  
B. Resolution No. 2025-74 Ordering the Imposition of the 2025 Property Tax Rates  
C. Resolution No. 2025-75 Approving Additional Compensation for the Sierra County 

Assessor Pursuant to NMSA 1978 
D. Direction to Publish Title and General Subject Matter of Ordinance No. 2025-005, 

Amending and Restating the Sierra County Solid Waste Ordinance No. 23-02 
XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H) : 

Pending and Threatened Litigation : 
A. Mendoza v. BoCC 

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session: 
XIII. Adjourn 
 
 
 
Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, October 21st, 2025, at 10:00 AM. 
Items for the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 
5:00pm on the Monday the week before the meeting. 
 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting, please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as 
possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible 
formats. Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format 
is needed. 

 

  
 



 

 
SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                          REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
August 19, 2025 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 9:30 AM Public Hearing Declaring a public safety disaster in 
Sierra County due to the threat of injury and damage from Mexican Wolves. 

   
CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting  

 
The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, August 19, 2025, at the Sierra County 
Commission Chambers, 1712 N Date St, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair  
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Amy Whitehead 
          
 County Attorney: David Pato  
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
   
Monica Zepeda, Josh Baker, Steve Mull-Sentinel, Patrick Flores, Joshua 
Chavez, Tim Kuzdrowski, Ryan Williams, Gay Skidmore, Dale Skidmore, 
Paul Waters, Dan Helton, Michael and Kim Perry, Kelsie Cochran, Kristie 
Hawkins, William & Loretta Rabenau, Marsha Wright, Sharon Luna, Lisa 
Daniel, Bruce Swingle, Susan Swaim, Jack Diamond, Mickey Atwell, Mr. 
and Mrs. Schneberger, Derek Bean, Virginia Lee, Candi Chavez, Jessica 
Pena, Patrice Love, Brett Mellot (US Forest Service), Kayce Edwards, Sandy 
Jones 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: With amendment moving Item X. A-Resolution 
2025-68 to be heard after Public Comment  

 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
August 19, 2025 
Page 2   

 

Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as amended. 
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A. Regular Meeting July 15, 2025 
B. Special Meeting July 31, 2025 
C. Special Meeting August 13, 2025 

 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the minutes as presented.  
Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
            Bruce Swingle 
            Susan Swaim 
            Jack Diamond  
 
All spoke in OPPOSITION to the Mexican Wolf and in Support of the Resolution 
Declaring a public safety disaster in Sierra County due to the Mexican Wolf. 
 
Lisa Daniel- Flying X Ranch:  Asked the Commissioners for more maintenance on 
Red Rock Road as it is terrible and tearing up their vehicles.  The Road is only 
maintained once or twice a year and she would like more maintenance.  
 
X: A- Resolution No. 2025-68 Declaring a Public Safety Disaster in Sierra County 
due to the threat of injury and Damage from Mexican Wolves.  
 

Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-68 
as presented. Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 

            
         
IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
A.  Resolution No. 2025-66 Accounts Payable 
B.  Resolution No. 2025-67 Indigent Claims 
C. Indigent Burial B2025-016 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
August 19, 2025 
Page 3   

 

A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 

 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  July Reconciliation 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the July Reconciliation as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS: 
A. Sierra Vista Hospital Joint Powers Agreement Amendment 

 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon moved to table the Amendment as presented. 
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

  
 

A. Approval of donation, 2000 Vermeer BC 1800A Woodchipper from 
Sierra Soil & Water Conservation District to the County of Sierra. 

 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Donation as presented.  

Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 
 

 
IX.  CONTRACT-AGREEMENTS-PROCUREMENTS 
 

A. Approval of Unauthorized purchase: Flood Commissioner 
 

   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Unauthorized Purchase as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 
 
B. Preservation Agreement between the State of NM Historic 
Preservation Division and Sierra County  
C. JPA Between the Department of Cultural Affairs Historic 
Preservation Division and Sierra County to improve Hillsboro Community 
Center. 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
August 19, 2025 
Page 4   

 

Commission Vice Chair Paxon moved to approve Preservation Agreement 
AND JPA as presented in one motion. 
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 
D. MOU Between Sierra County and T or C School District for 
student admission to school sporting events.  
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the MOU as presented.  
Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 
 
E. MOU between Sierra County and Sierra County Arroyo Flood 
District to provide temporary seed funding for operations. 

     
                       Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the MOU as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

F. RISE Grant agreement between Sierra County and The Olive Tree 
G. BHIZ Grant agreement between Sierra County and The Olive Tree 
              
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Both agreements (RISE and 
BHIZ) as presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 
 
H. NM Capital Outlay Grant Agreement 25-J3162 

        
 Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Agreement 25-J3162 as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

I. NM Capital Outlay Grant Agreement 25-J3163 
 
 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Grant Agreement 25-J3163 as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 
 
J. NM Capital Outlay Grant Agreement 25-J3165 

             
 Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Agreement 25-J3165 as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
August 19, 2025 
Page 5   

 

K. Cost of Care Agreement between the County of Bernalillo and the 
County of Sierra 

 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Cost of Care Agreement as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
 

X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 
 

A.  Resolution No. 2025-68 MOVED TO AFTER PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
B.  Resolution No. 2025-69 FY 26 Budget and Transfer Amendment  
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-69 as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
C.  Resolution 2025-70 FY 26 Budget Amendment-Arroyo Flood District  
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution 2025-70 as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): NO executive 
session  

 
 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 
       
            
XI. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday September 16, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. at the 
Sierra County Commission Chambers 1712 N. Date Street Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico. 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
August 19, 2025 
Page 6   

 

Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting at 11:45am. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 19th day of August 2025. 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
August 19, 2025 
Page 7   

 

 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 

   
 



Slate of New Merico

Amf ,tthitehead
Couht) Cle*
575-891-2810

Carrdatc Chava
Counq: Treosurer

s75-891-3521

Cor|a0 ..lJsejsot
575-891-2589

575-740-190t)

171 2 N. Date, Suite D
Trullr or Consequences, New Merico 87901

Counly of Sierra

575-E9142t 5

Hanh Hop*ins

575-891-62t 5

Trat'is Do)

575-E91-6215

Co nty ShdtiIf
575-891-9t S0Ambcr )1rughn, Couh\t Mahager

575-891- l5 voic? S751t9l-9518f&r

RESOLUTTON NO.202s.71
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PAYMENT OF CLAIMS THROUGH THE PERIOD BEGINNING
AUGUST 1ST,2025

AND
ENDING AUGUST 31ST, 2025

WHEREAS, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY, NEW [/EXICO,
MEETING IN REGULAR PUBLIC SESSION ON AUGUST 191H,2025 DESIRES TO PROVIDE FOR THE

EQUITABLE AND REASONABLE PAYENT OF CLAIMS DUE AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, AND;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT CLAIMS, PURCHASE VOUCHERS AND WARRANTS

DETAILED AND ATTACHED HERETO, PAYABLE FROM THE VARIOUS FUNDS, IN THE AMOUNT OF

$992,126.55 ARE PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THIS ,I6IH 
DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025,

ATTEST: TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER

HANK HOPKINS COMI\iIISSIONER

SIERRACOUNT
NEW MEXICO

AN/Y WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK JAMES PAXON, COMI/ISSIONER

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO



E ; f

ge

" 
.,9

Eg; E
3

o3 g 2

:

6 2 9 v

1 E 3 9

E a : 1 :

I

i, :

t I

".
.3

"2
"t

3"
=

=
A

I 7 B

c e

;:t
:"

9:
I

ri
E x

2

i"3 r"
!

;l 
:g

{



::

I z l E

s!
 

F
 

!

1

>
; 

g
9F

,

q 3 {

z E H * 5

."
"d

!

,

i

:

:

i

E
9'

E

E 3
I 3 I

E 4

3"
"1

-=
.3

t=
A

5C
 E

d 
l5

: 
3

II

E f

e I

:



i

B

1:

gt
:

E

I

";
 

t,:

I E

9B
E

'iE
5

83
55

-r
3

e9
{:

3O
T

 
Ei 5 i

t I :

1 ,

39
""

-
5d

z
O

:T
i;{ T

1E
i:, 9I

C

iE

I

!x i.



-e
E

6 I 8

39
8:

9
IJ

:}
T

E

e;
E

E

;;.
9

:g
 

gl

E F I

E

? 
t 

r!
t 

r 
! 

! 
t 

>
 r

 r
 !

 
r 

! 
! 

t 
r 

t 
! 

t 
>

 t
 

t 
t 

! 
! 

tc B F p



:

6 
rir

,i 
ri 

E
 

F
 

E
 B

 t
i 

E
 l

; 
d 

ri 
E

 E
 d

.i 
d,

n 
6 

E
 E

 F
 

d
F

F
vn

rn
nn

ni
ni

ni
!.a

!>
!!!

>
!r

!r
rr

! 
r 

rr
 

rr
rr

rt
tt 

t 
t 

I 
tt 

I 
t 

t 
t 

t5
 

t 
t 

I 
ltt

ttt
t 

t 
t 

t 
9

5 
5 

t 
g;

 ?
 a

l s
 e

 s
 3

 e
 s

 s
 s

 H
 3

 r
 fr

 f
f 

E
 =

 fr
 3

 F
 r 

xr
: 

x 
r 

4I
4 

F
 F

; 
E

E
 E

6;
E

 E
 5

3I
 E

 E
 E

 q
 f

r 
g 

C
C

gE
 E

; 
:i 

:i 
! 

6 
r 

x 
t 

H
 E

 E
 x

 i 
q 

g 
e 

E
 r 

6 
3 

E
 E

 r 
p 

F
 I 

i 1
 1

 1
 5

 t 
3 

r 
a 

r 
: 

E
 ; 

n 
n 

; 
i',

 i,
i I

 i 
F

 E
' t,

>
z

.,.
 "

 ! 
! 

ii 
I 

!. 
o 

- 
H

, 
n 

u 
jfi

 o 
E

=
 H

, 
=

=
u\

i:;
:E

E
 i'

uu
r=

 -
,1

a 
E

=
, 

u 
ft;

 E
 e 
il:

*:
-,

, 
"

rr
!-

2.
.ln

F
F

oF
 

oz
E

ir!
rd

ir;
zd

i1
fr

 
ii 

lN
20

i- 
h 

{ 
! 

nr
 i,

 o
 F

 i
 

I 
- 

i 
( 

t 
; 

F
 .

 
!i2

rlS
;

ot
;:;

c 
-r

i,a
E

'r'
:I1

iI*
:H

H
il:

E
 

Y
 3

 E
 j 

l {
 : 

t 
i E

 t 
; 

! 
0 
i "

i E
 E

 : 
3 

s 
. 
. 
i :

 ; 
l -.

 r 
F

 : 
i E

 l1
 : 

r 
g 

} 
5 
! 

, 
[ 

fi 
!

r\
N

in
r_

!-
-,

i



pvN 1t26/2s
PERA 

'OMACK 
VIRGINIA ?/26l25

PEFA wOMACx lrPGtNrA 1/26/2a
PEs f,YAm ?OBERa 1/25/25
pEFA YAw raxs ? /?6/2s

AjrrlroN r/ 2 5/2
z^c]alRy 1/26 /2e
crt{Dy 1/26/2a
&)N7L 1/26/2s

!E* N]c ACEFIN AI,IS^ 7/2
PERA MATCH ALVAIEZ COMEZ HEC"T

PEh A'Ig{ ANDEPSON SIIER.RY ?/
lEs IiATcH NoDA.A vINclM ?/
PEiA ATSB AiXIJO ERNIE 1/26/

.rliNEY '/2
P'RA HATOT ATTEI,I, MIq{E!I]E ?/
pEe l.lafor alrEl-! TRAvrs ,/26
PEiA 

'NATOI 
ATqEL" S{A}IE ?/26l

IEU N|ATSI BARMII'AIA J!NA!
PERA I.IATCII BAREOIIWAlA JINAI,

,}MN 7/26
PERA I,|AT.1I ALOBOUIST JAIFEE ?

PERA MATC}I ARO'rN AI,ANA ?/2612
PERA MATCtl CAiiEON AI]E.IA}IDRO

PERA MATCH CARSON 81,I2!BET! ?

x-^rL 1/26/2
PERA r{ATer cAsrru,o r{AiY ?/26
PERA I,IATCH CATTEI,IIN ASHLEY 7

JosrlarA 7/26
(urrs r/26

PERA IIATCfi CROM NADII.IE ?/2512
PER; E][X DErlffXINCX TYLER

l,Al{EirDA t/2
rosEPR 1/26/

PEf,"A MATC1I FAI'I,K}'ER NEA:L 
'/25

PERA tlA"cli FLORES PNII.ICK 1/2
PEi^ HATCI G^IICTA LSIiLEY 

'/2

PERA I.{ATCH GAXCIA CHEALSEY ?/
EDEN 1/26/2

PERA MATt'H CRECORY J 7/'6l'5
PEE ATCII C]JTIERREZ I,O!JiDES

EEh hTG NRISON DIE ?/26
p.RA r{aTcri r{aYEs KoNNr ?/:6/2

MICHAE! 7/26

PEh HATCA HOLI-Y ,'OSEPHINE ?/
IERA MATCI] ]]OtsAiD AUSTIX 7/26

?Es MATCIr XEE CASs\D.t 1/25/2

R BEN 7/26l

1I



;l 
;

! 
<

 
ts

 e
 

S
t 

q 
I 

qq
 

ra
 f

 
!! 

q 
!! 

q 
!! 

!, 
o 

o 
o 

6 
+

 
m

 E
 d

, 
E

 E
 E

 E
 r

i 
E

 E
 d

 
E

 o
 

d 
o.

i 
d 

d,
 r

 
ri 

ri 
F

 
o

i 
5 

5 
C

 C
 r 

I 
I 

f 
r 

99
ey

9*
99

99
98

 
E

 t
r 
* 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
* 

* 
I 

I 
I 

* 
I 

I 
I 

I 
g 

F
 I 

E
**

 g
9e

y
F

iii
E

III
E

IS
E

E
E

$E
lE

tE
F

qi
qt

ilt
ttt

tF
F

F
f 

E
E

rE
E

{{
E

{6
8{

E
E

i E
 6

 t
r 
I1

a4
14

 i
 i 

I 
i 4

I4
 i 

3 
i d

 i 
d 

d 
i d

 i 
4 
j i

 I 
I 
i I

 i 
i d

 i 
d 
i i

 i 
i I

 d
 d

 i 
d 
i;

iB
 e

 H
 I 

I 
; 

; 
I 

X
 E

 I 
I 

I 
I 

i 
S

 I 
e 

I 
3 

I 
* 

3 
+

 s
 *

 *
 4

 4
 2

3,
48

=
; 

E
 ; 

5 
E

 E
 E

 f;
 : 

F
, 

*,
 : 

g
3;

5 
;;;

8'
:; 

E
 F

 i 
i 

i 
! 

fi 
q 

* 
I 

H
 E

 E
 X

 i 
I 

e 
3 

E
 E

; 
g 

E
 3

 ?
 p

 p
 e

 E
 a

 a
=

=
31

ei
2V

az
Z

d,
 

a

3;
3.

""
83

..'
 

E
 

"b
"'"

 
l9

 
E

. 
I-

9 
S

-.
.-

t 
9q

 
th

f
' s

 9
.'i

, 
': 

E
 i 

i -
 r;

 I 
a 

5I
 {.

 { 
tr

 E
 ^

 E
 x

 h
 E

; 
" 

r 
t 
a'

iti
 i 

E
 i 

r 
e 

a 
r 

3 
3 

a.
 #

;5
 E

.lr

e;
s

Ilr
xl

.! 
:l 

'-

3

9l

5l 2



!

Y
'

B

"=
=

d8
!3

5i 52

? E a E E B

E e

g T

I

;2
3

E
Z

E

:-
a

g

E
gO

C
 

E
E

E
"I

 
E

3

9u
E

u

i



a ?

e-

2Z

i I i; 1

I

}:
B

 
'P

X
d

t

::

!' a

:

"lE
: 

ii:
3

E

E

c

!9



i 5

E ,

f; E

;o
 s

 I ? i i

e E

t

E

;d

A

-:
-

ol oi
l

-*
*.

gt

""
,fr

E
 

i



!

P
!!a

E 5 t,

3 i
E F t :,,

:l E 2

bs
E

E
!=

!"
I

P
: 

>
:"

8s

& F

E P

I,z
11

;1

d ! I

,

H
Z

tis
zu

rr
:

::

x 3 I

"-
::

i:i
r0

,

"*
 

r:



t-

I i

;- a:

1

ii

9E

9t
"

6,

.,.
-"

.-
"2

1

ts t I

"=
3

5"
9 T

E
Y E

,:

{\
N

 
i



E 3

1,
9

z I

E I g

c9
E

8C
Ie

68

a i

;

t- l-

6

T E ; ?

5;
38

S
E

I x

I I s I E

zf
,3

E I

9l <
:



H

ri

I 5 :1

:

E z

E E 3

E E 3 : :

E

93
33

,3
33

"ii
l dg

.
{E

oiI v
1 3

33
;E

g

u6

-l!
u!

{o
\\J

.iu
";

r3

: i



!

n

fl2

5

\

z

3

e x
1 3 7

, z 3 a

lii
a\

ai
t-



I F

!r

I i'j

x 3 t

H
S

I e E

i F \ i

g E

I a 1 E

62
 

88
 "

3

E
B

53
*

"3
""

4

F :

E

!

e

e9
59

E

e T iJ Z I

:



\aa.,r1/ac te6tLzLl

920./ 0zl 3c srvo Irrs
t32r0000 0N JxnoJJv

szoz/rr/ La or, szaz/tt/sa
NOi.i,vJs 3!rJ l3Ilr\r

ltrr o 00 0 0N r[noJJY
szoz/ rt/ Lc or e.at/tr/90

tsrfrl aorNas llxrN
6.rr000o oR l!r110JaY

s.az/rt/ La or azaz/tt/ea
NOrrvr:rossv

sz0zlr0/30 3rvc lJro,1Nr

.raz/1t/La d s.n./ ta/ La

5l,Irsnofl 3-rvRNr rlnor

szazlrt/sa aa 66s.sgz

sz0zl r0 / s0 srvc srio^xr
00-66srEsz ox s.rro/1xr

sirr^dss cNrssSJoad YJvo

szar/|i/3a s.a.rte

s 20. /!0 /€0 srvo oro^Nr

szoz/ea/Eo z)ro '111a

Hrvirsro TvNorcsd

16'r.9a Jr3E VnYr SEr,ir1rtrYr

Nrr.ov .uxnoa wrsrs
s a0zl.0/30 sJ,vr gJloANl

oc azc 2103 ofl gJroNl

s.oz./ ta / aa or- .zo. / ra / Lo

901s rur{ov 
^lxnoa 

YBlars



rl-

I ri

I

'J 3 I

-.
...

 
d

"=
s5

.-
"i9

.

E .

t

4 g

b-
*.

iB

E :

5 I I

3 4 I I

.-
,s

I

I

1



xJta t dEJHcr'rlgrs
)rJvd t snBd

sdr'14 dsdrd
Eirvr cr{rxJvd

xavd 3 r3.rtIvr{
a oa x3sva r3,IroJ

ss,r 0a .ldoJ 'r,1rr{d:r.&rYH

0'104 sreNlrsYJ s!3r{ q}lJror

xzdra rrlror srlHrl sorl{rslo3
'r10d 0r sr?xol, [sl]:]Jrx 3orJsr(oJ

1S rEd 1T?€r3r!Or Sm'lSq :TCSrNn
rarffl lrdntxs

I,]s sma 11vsrs110t r,rlno
vrr{vx sd8olod !1rd

ino :rrf, Jrs
dsaYd raoJ 11 )r s 3

s.az/ rt/Ba L.assrrrrNoII\.IGuo.,l'llno

5.ozlsol30 srvo arro^xr

J',r1 ',rxlNdrn& s8^r3 t !z0zlrrlao 600€r3r
6OO 3I3I 'ON SJIOANI

s&gvr ,.'rod atxor

IISISVNEI SS'II']IJVJ

szozl rr / 30 e/fErr€r

szaz/vI/aa s/RzL13r

rdro ovo{ 
^1{no3 

v{l?Is

Ezozl 90/ 30 srvq r.ro^Nr

sNsrr snortN^
fdeq dvor ArNnoJ YdBrrs

t30f oN a3Ho.Lso.f

szozlrr/30 3J,vo saro^xr
9/ 3Z. r0r Ofi liroNr

Sl,ElI Sol{Y^

e.a. / tt /Ec asrr6szl-t6

szoz/ t1/ro aetr6ezlt.

J.dso ovox llrll]oJ Yrxsls
rs9r.0sT on rs|orsna

s z0z / r0 /30 3r,vo :l10Nr
0s r16 921r6 0 411o^Nr

szozlr0l30 srvo ssro^Nr
1S.16tZrE6 0N :r.rro^Nr

sxsJr snordYl

szoz/ vo/aa a&a 117a



I

! c

i7
1A

P
.

3-
,E

h

3

g
5 9

I

' 
3d 9a

:E

5

n2
'

:II

i



.

8 i

B
;F

8;
F

;-
-a

l-

:E
E 5 *

P 5 *
e

5t
 

I 
g

!
E

9 5 d :

{E

!, E



=
4

4 P

s

E
9 I g ts

d 
.l 

x 
J 

\ 
E

 
4 

x 
{ 

\' 
l, 

- 
\ 

- 
-l 

^ 
J 

\ 
F

 
4 

: 
{ 

\ 
o 

-t
, 

- 
\ 

o'
l 

x 
{ 

\ 
6 

t

i



E

6- \

i

!lo
oF

st
on

ts
!.n

>
F

3'
""

S
"8

""
8"

""
38

!!

3

e
i

:
:

:9

:

:



Line IreE

CILN'TY INDIGE|.T

oBRlEN, PR-AXCES DOS cElr0l202t
DOS o./2\ /25
DOS O5l2rlrC2!
DOS 0sl?1/202E

AIPROVED BY COrt{ttrSSrON ?,/ r!/2s
SIERRA COUT'IY II'DIGENT

Bt42a25 )B/\4 /20?5

ACIGRXAN 
^!ISA 

3/9/29
ANDERSON SHERRY 3 /9/29
AIODACA VINCBTT 3 /9/25
AxxrJo ErxrE 3 / e/2s
AXXIJO CORTEEY 3/9/2 5

AfiErJ, ircl{ELLE 3/ e/2s
At!IEI]L TRAVIS S/9/ 25

AawErr! SHANE 3 /9/ 25

AA.RDOIITAIA JINAL A/9/2
BAimlrrarr .rrxAr s/9/2
BIIYEU lrMS g/9/26
sroMouls! JAFFEE 3/9/2s
sRomr AraNA a/e/25
clxxEo Ar-rraxDRo 3/ e/2
CAXSON ELIZABETH 3/9/25
caRsoN ELrzAlE"nr s /r/ 25

cAxsoN xarl, 3/e/2e
casTrLra lr,arY 3/9/25
CAITEI]AIN ASHLEY 3 /9 /25
clrAlEz JosmA 3 /e /2s
ctriRY cuitrs 3 / 9/25

DORSEY IATIEXDA 3/9/29

PAIJ'IJIOIER NE^T A/9/ 2 9

FTDiES PTTXTCK 3/9 /25
GALICIA ASHLEY 3/9/29
G^ecrA crEArsEY s/e/2s
GAiCIA CEEALSEY 3,/9/2'
GA,iCIA EDEN 3/9/?5

..llZAI,lZ ' FNAZ]5P SHANTE

GREGORY J 3/9/25
GTTI'IERREZ I"O!'RD'S A/9/2
HARRISON DAIE 3/J/2]

HEARN MICHAET- 3/9,/29
}TERNANDEZJoS€a,9/2i
HOLLY lrOSElHiN! s/9/25

{usToN yrcHA€L s/9,/ri

202so3oeRGLR 03/1el2o2t

135



:l

, 
! 

t 
t 

I 
t 

t 
t 

M
 

! 
! 

I 
t, 

t 
t 

t 
t 

t>
tr

>
 

! 
I 

I 
t 

t 
t 

t 
l 

tt 
t 

t 
I 

t 
I 

t 
I 

t 
I 

I 
t 

t 
t 

I 
t 

t 
I 

t 
t 

t 
t 

t

s

I :I

uo
oJ

!
oi

\c
.!



:l

; 
i f

 E
 f 

f 
f 

r 
E

 f 
r 
f 

E
 t

r 
E

 r
y 
* 

r 
E

 E
 p

 r
 E

 r 
E

 9
g9

y9
ge

 e
 *

 F
 e

 r
 e

 I 
e 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
E

 e
 y

 e
 e

 *
E

ee
ef

 e
E

 e

5

H
,4

 3
: 

B
;;:

;; 
E

 6
 5

 6
 5

 5
 r

 4
 E

 F
 E

E
 E

E
55

 6
 E

 6
 E

 E
 5

* 
S

 3
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

e 
X

 I 
r 

B
 H

t 
I 

I 
e 

e 
e 

e 
e;

 *
p

, I



9i
:

;lq
B

3

E
3

q 
IE

: 
ti

t

F I

I ! 3

IE
E

E
 E

'E
I 

I 
T

 T
E

E
'E

T
F

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

a : I



e-

2

E
S

S
aE

E
tE

F
F

E
E

F
E

 
r

ee
zz

" 
3 

.
>

iq
^.

l!<
->

-l 
o 

:l

&
6{

r 
<

 
o

.>
z>

>
rn

.l

3

at

\

r:
::a

:::
ii

.F
irF

..F
<

oo
*-

E
oi

F
iF

iE
rir

id

t9
;

"9
.

:IE :6 ci
i

5a t!

t 3 g E

".
.."

9

-"
85

*t
."

""
.



szoz/az/aa..aeLtect

s soszrr 00 9610 l$Jv
szc./rr/.c arvs asro^xr

lrra - ro r0r cscvalsr/lrssro sNmTvc

o30\.!'rAur/'r!ssro sNolTv9 0rz 6

Jd30 ovor ](J,rsloJ vdrsls
caovEr|Lrhsslrs sNo.rT{g 60t 9afa

1rrlqllvr rjxaoa vYusrs
qsov:r1No/'lsssrq sNo.r-R9 911 234

latl orlfls\rJ
os6c!1,ur/13ssro

Jaro errr o.rTvavJ
o30v!1xn/.lssaro

shr sYhorvit svr
oeo!31rrJr /1esr ro

r rlz- 0s'rT r ossvsqNn/'rrssro sNo.rTvc 0r€'62
J,dlo IHII rg8lN

sNol'rrE r05 0r

rllz 13 rrr osqYflN.,r/lssslo sNorrr!9 a06 at
IN'K II.IIfJV' IIJI'TOC Vrfx:IIS

o!.Mrmrn/13srro s o.rTs! zr9'rrl
{leEV arrr rrxJloJ valars

rtrz-sr-92r Go\rirNnhssrro
,{lNooJ Yallls

Gs\ra1Nn/1sssro
NOIJ,IIIJIIO IJIVTOJ rfAdIIS

orlM.M/a!ssro
xr31J ltNnOJ ra{rsrs

rosssssv rl,^moa Y{ra1s
Bra-gg-z.t oaoEnxn/qsssro silolTvc 295 9r

o!ov: n/Tssrq

o30Yir1{n /13s3ra

s.at/6t/3a sta.6Ia

I{\rJ H.IT{ltI AAlIIfiII
EZo Z irnr

NorJJrsrx.Jnol snlddns
,ln'IO5 YdJAI'J,IdOH,IJIV IU\rJ HJTfJU ssdIJII! 

'{N

\rlnllrs ro xno:)
E9r ON dltoic

saczlcr/a0 Srvo grlo^nl
roo00a r0 Ea ofl rrro.xl

srilrkssrssv adsdodd



IS

c

I I s 6 x
! 

E
E

 E
 E

 E
E

E
E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
E

E
E

.E
 E

E
E

 4
 4

 E
 E

 E
 E

E
E

E
E

E
 E

 4
 d

 E
 4

E
C

E
E

E
4i

* 
E

E
 E

 E
 E

 =
 *E

i
; 

e 
r 
i r

 ! 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I9

99
99

99
 e

 S
 I 

I9
99

99
9s

 A
 r 

0 
99

 e
 e

00
0F

9 
F

r 
S

-t
 g

;9
t 

B
i r

- 
J 

E
 E

 E
 E

 6
 f 

S
 g

 I 
I 
I9

99
93

re
 I

 e
 I 

e 
C

 e
 9

e 
es

E
 E

 p
 "

 "
";

J 
7 

74
41

rX
: 

X
 *

 9
 *

 4
 t

r 
E

 9
 E

 r 
F

 X
r<

ts
oE

 
,F

ro
q4

H
H

E
rn

.n
lo

- 
oo

O
z'

nO
O

ts
a 

F
'_

._
 

rh
rF

;o
dz

i6
;, 

>
6d

 
t

J!
*t

zu
 

I 
,,h

,t'
"h

! 
<

z<
iiF

rt
ti 

C
F

irr
. 

rr
u_

* 
,o

F
E

o-
h

oN
>

 
oN

lt:
!

i,J
 g

 4
 E

 : 
3 

r 
i 

g 
[ 

. 
L-

 E
 ?

 r
 r

 I 
1 

3 
! 

E
 3

 b
 ! 

: 
I 

F
 E

 F
 E

 >
. 
; 

F
 i 

=
 3 

fr
 2

 a
 2

 t'
 

g 
; 

S
 E

 t 
u 

u 
t 

; 
g 

.
@

..z
uO

aE
 

F
z 

>
F

lF
rn

b 
z 

F
 F

 !
 

! 
o 

, 
t 

u 
ai

 r
 

h 
r 

F
 6

 E
 t

 
h 

o 
b 

6 
c 

-
>

c\
N

rd
>

r2
<

 
i:{

;ii
dt

tt>
 

o 
h,

it
>

, 
ro

l, 
t-

F
.*

>
r2

 
;c

tn
b 

It 
E

_ 
_ 

a 
; 

i' 
, 

i! 
o 

I 
; 

t 
q 

J 
E

 {
 

ts
 |i

 F
 '

Jr
u\

r-
<

<
 

!J
{h

_E
--

lL
{ 

J'
o]

 
la

i]E
-E

ni
,i

N
\N

P
U

-i,
O



5S

!z/.!/. vsrtM.r!^alxJv HarE
ezl:r/. rwH,rvzYrY^Yz Har@

/rrla eo[rwrxsdocYz Har@
I Z/ TC,/. 130!O!Sdt Hlru

5./rrl. rdssorvio$or{ tIrrw
sz /1r/. 3sor,rltrx ]..rYri

szl rrl. ,]?rrr.dnlafl ,'.ru
9Z / rtl. nrrtNrd,r3oovr iiar\.{
e e/rrl. 3'rvsNosrrrans t rv1,r

r. /z ll xvHszsavzNoc HrJYln

ral. xrrrlxaNrr,{avr^ro saJYn

rr /. oroNvrs'rvNosuu\fr H:)JY,{

/rrl. s?rrYrrsrnoncns H.:)JYI{

z/rr /r r{!3Nrn\aJvcodY }Lrvx

Ezlrrlr vrrNox vordaz
ezlr r /. roNrs vo!d3?

5zlralL Nax\.I lilv,{

szlrtl. JusEor rlvrr.l
5Zlrel* NlCrrA XJVrtrOr!

9ZlrEla VINl9drA )rJYlrOr

selral. rw { sr{Yr']Irr
5zlrrlz rls rsErld

.z/1rlr Hrrr, 
^3xrrHB !z/rrl. .1h., ov:H rHA

!z/rrl. russor suzrft!,r
ezlrrl. u!E^l, NH5nv,l

5zlrrl. roNYi z rdor
E Z/r a/. r€rdbr Nosdrtrorrr

szlrrl.6lJ,sIdtl slssrs
s z/r e /r \.rrssar 

^s.rNv.i-s !z/rtll .rslovrs trar€as
rzlra11 rsst3r xvriordos

szl1tlL N3A3IS Hl,r,lls

szlrrl. oxYH.rs raurHs
./ rt /. \.EoNvs

!z/rrl. vss:rl{3^ vdn as
Ezlr{/. Il{rlar r.art{]Ds

!z/rrlr rcr{rf zansrdaor
szlrrl. rwsr s{a^rr

EZ/ITl' NSH.LYNHOI OSSI

5zlrrlL Nssrlu l'Isooau
!z/rrl. \.rrsssf vNad

!z/rrl. oovrrxYs sa^lrn
5zlrrl. r{vr11 rs1a3x
rzlrrl. hrcr'1lrr 

^a1s3n Ezlrrl. !l"l!r{Yd rrYunfl
s z/r t/L 

^JNVN 
lrdoR

szl r E /r, YrdoNzx3'rY vxoNoN
szlrr11 vrlo^nrzxrru v oNox

szlral. 3lI1Y t^orllox
z/rrll vNlrsa\'& olcax xon
z/ rr /. 1lilrJslm3 0u93N nox

sz / rrl. rdoo Yoir\.{rrr
szlrr/. svrofi.Jrr H,!\.d11f}r

szlr./4 !r11\.r ssorsfl.n'r
!z/r r /. Nlsnr oxslo'r

rcg:rllijt .r \r:e .. /71/6



a : 5

B

: 
] 

f 
e 

r 
e 

I 
r 

c 
c 

e 
I 

I 
d 

4 
c 

4 
-c

 i 
! 

E
 i 

c 
E

 E
 E

E
 E

 E
 E

 C
 q

 E
 C

 E
 E

4 
+

 +
 4

 4
 4

 4
 C

 I 
lil

?e
?4

 
c 

c 
4 

4 
4 

+
 E

o.
oo

.td
iln

i1
 

.
r 

r 
>

, 
r 

r>
rt

t 
I 

I 
I 

r 
I 

t 
t 

, 
t 

>
 t

 
t 

t 
t 

I 
t 

t 
t 

tt 
ttt

ttr
;;;

iI{
{I

II{
E

IIE
E

S
E

S
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
I'E

E
E

E
E

!I!
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
'E

E
E

'4
E

{{
'{'

E
E

E
ii

,, 
! 

i.t
 I

 .
L 

? 
c 

e 
e 

e 
s 

I 
a 

i 
I 

I3
I 

??
 I 

I 
M

 
i 

J'
 e

 .*
L 

r 
I 

I 
I 

e 
I 

$ 
I 

{ 
I 

i 
i 

i i
 a

 i 
Q

 i 
i 

i 
I 

? 
i

1q
3:

;A
A

r 
A

iA
E

3E
55

5r
5E

E
E

5;
C

E
E

6f
i 

f; 
r3

98
e9

99
rit

89
aC

g9
S

9- ""
;tx

F
aB

tll
E

E
! 

!. 
F

 >
 >

,r
,r

 
4.

t.t
 

>
 r

 
o 

E
 

t 
i- 

z 
! 

E
 j 

ai
 i.

4 
0a

n 
e 

2 
6 

til
j 

.<
,l 

aa
b6

 
a 

<
 o

 u
.i.

t 
ri;

;
q;

 
":

E
 

F
hg

 I
| 

E
:9

 
9 

d 
,l 

^6
(i;

 
r 

P
 I 

i 
r 

i: 
k

; 
;; 

..i
 ; 

{ 
\ 

ie
 1

. 
y 

A
 r 

y 
rB

 f 
E

 i 
I 

E
 E

 i 
6 

U
 3

 E
 H

 H
 E

 I 
H

 ; 
: 

E
 6

 i 
E

 E
 i 

H
 E

 E
 5

 E
 i 

E
 E

 F
' r

 F
'- 

L 
i" 

r 
! 
i ;

?,
,1

 ii
!ti

!2
i. 

tlF
F

F
ti'

F
az

, 
:1

11
*,

 
E

*e
X

94

",
t 

6 
. 
! 

? 
. 

3 
E

 &
 " 

- 
S

 i.
 

ee
 -

ar
. 

r,
, 

j p
 "

 i 
s 

" 
: 
s:

 r
.-

 g
 H

 I 
c 

F
 . 

II"
 

" 
F

 " 
:B

 B
' =

 : 
!,'

 
F

. 
"

. 
_F

i.-
 

j 
I

I !



t-

r I :j I

\

I q z \ 2

"-
-.

--
-t

ttr
tr

tr
rt

!:

s 
s 

3 
3 

3 
33

 3
:3

3:
3 

3 
3 

3 
3 

3 
3 

3 
33

 3
 3

33
 3

 3



cliavEzJosHuA 3 / r.! /2s

mTSEYLATE DA 3/1!/25
NsrosEPH 3/1. /2s

FAULxl,laRrlEAI 3/1{/2r
EIaRESPAT?ICJ( A/14l2s
GALICTa.LSHLEY 3/14/2s
GAicraorEArsEY s/14/25
GAxcrAclrEArsEY 3/14l25
CATCIAEDEN 3/14 /2 5

GODFREYJTXET S/1'l?5
c6r,rEz ilvaxEzrEcrer a / r! /2s

crrrrEllEzr.uxrEs 3/r./25
I{AYESXONNI B/1{/25
HEARXT,TTCSAEL 3/r./25
I{ERNANDE'JOSE 3/I{/25
HOLI,YJOSEFI{INE 3/14/25
HOWA.RDAUSTIN 6/I{/25
r{usToNilrcl{.A,Er, 3 / r4 /25
xEEcassrDY 3/r4l25
LE'VIRGINIA A/14/25
IDVEPA"RICa S/1{/25
LOCEToA,,SERT 3/14/25
,"UCERORUEEN 3/14/25
LI'NSFORDXAILIE 3 / 11l25
ircrLRATxNrcHoL s 3/1./25

rRrNDrDona 3/r{/25
xomErEcRoEnnEsTrNA 3/ ra /25
uomsr\EcRoEFrEsTrNA 3/1. /2s
r.oNtoYrN,rcE 3/14 /2S
|,onaNAr{cY 3 / Lal25
Muaa?r parrEra 6/1{/25
NEELEYIiILLIA!1 3/TTl25
TEELEYXILLI^X 3/T'l25
rlrevessalrrraco 3/rrl25
pENAJESSTCA 3/ !. /2a
REDDELLIlrICEN 3/I{/25
REEDJO'IN^THEN 3/ T{ /25
RIVERSISAAC 3 / r{/25
RODRTGUEZCINDY 3/1{/25
sorxrDTJEiEr{Y 3/ra /25
SEG{'P,AVENESSA 3 / }{ /2 5

SEG!$ LUcE.osMs 3/i4l2s
SEE,I".ERiIC{ARD E/11 /2E

Sx IT,ISTEVEN 3/r4l2t
soProiIAxTEiEsA a/1{/2s
SPINCEREnaDLEY S/14/25

sTEELEcrRrsrlnA a/1./2e

MRiEZCANDY 3/TTl29
ruxxERJoHN s/1{/2r
vAu6nxlxBER a/r{/2s
iAT,TERSROBERI S/ i{./ 2 5

qHITEHEADNIY A/T{/29

16

15

31

5



l

,9
C

 il
 ; 

! 
l. 

! 
B

 9
;9

I9
;9

 
r 

91
t 

! 
l9

 i
 9

 r
 g

 l9
l 

? 
I 

I 
I3

 i
;;9

 
9l

 !
 !

 I
 l9

 '.;
 

? 
3t

 9
 ! 

I 
t

;; 
f 

T
 f 

i 
f 

#i
'f 

F
;g

;i 
E

 E
 E

 E
 E

+
IT

f 
I'E

g 
E

 E
;iF

iiE
E

E
 

E
 E

 E
E

 E
{ 

6{
 {

;;E
i}h

+
IT

X
:+

.;;
 

I 
i; 

! 
i !

 I
 r

 I 
r 

! 
? 

? 
? 

? 
? 

r 
I 

r 
I 

I 
I 

? 
? 

?9
 i?

e 
e 

? 
e 

3 
??

 ?
 ?

 I 
I 

??
 ?

?t
 l

 
a 

s 
3 

E
l B

 x
 ru

E
B

6E
IU

IT

a.
ir(

z
F

,F
,r

L,
.

::-
i:9

'I



alaa/r./ac t.rzlza
ll-r)c ro sxr': Nr NDrds rsrno!{or6

at

34.^a3s Jx9H 
^trNlcdsl,E laJ,virsrs

NOIINSJ,SO

,431J ,'l.il1otr !c sfllgo
srNsrssrssv rJ,radodd

orru'rtsrwad\air
ral[lsvnYH s: r r 1,]r.lvi

s.az/rt/ea 1'tod^\e
.z/6/e or- c7./Lz/L aornaa 

^\a galrrl3 vf,rNor&qaaiz HaJw v),rd
ezl'rl9 ronDvoea3z xfrlH vJnd

szlrll€ Ngxv.rxv^ Efrw vrHr
SZI}I/A IIESOALiVIX Ii'JvH YJHT

z/rrl3 vrNrcxrdJvhox Brru vf,n
z/'rl3 vrNrcrr^rlYAod tsxu vJHd

Ezlrrl€ Arcrusftr.l1rfl Hrr.Yl^ vrrH
szl'rlf rIlrr[rs ffw Y.ft

szlrrl3 lr.!r rx^3j.!r Hr ror,rr{ vra!
szlrrl8 rwvsvsll3rrria HJrvn vatsd

s./Dr/€ rxlsorsdsrTvx r{Jl,vx 1rrrft
Ealrrl8 larE \rNH9rwA lr.rJvl4 vJHr
Ezlrrl3 r,Irofdsr{dnr }DrvH vrHU

szlr1la lanrtfJsaddor HIYN vJHr
9zlr1l3 [i{\OrNOSarO , ltfil trJlrd

/rrl9 Ynrrsrrraa.rs3rs atrrw EJI{d

z/'rl3 wlrssslrislNvJ.s Erw Eln
z/irls 

^s'rovdsrsrNsds 
Hlrtl{ \.ln

/1116 63{{NrNorac l w bHx
!z/irl8 Na^arsH,rrrs HIvx Y-rHx

z/'r13 0ad6rurslHs lfiw vf,u
t vdsnYsorl3m1 Ydr}g3s lr!:Lvx vJHr
s./ rr /3 vssEr{3^Ydm3s Hlr\,}l \.JHts

szl'rls lxelafi,qrxH3s uJrvH vfHr
z/ rr /3 ionllz3ncrxoot lrJ.Lw vJxr

szl trl 3 awsrsaa^lr HJJII EJHI
EZlrTl8 N:H.rvMof{rea Dru vru
EZlrIlS NesrNlr.recor} DrB vrHd

sal rlle vjissefvMa Hrrs E*
z/'r/a oovlJrYssa^lrN ri]Jw r.Jhlr
galill8 I,{vI11Ia i1esN atrrta vls
ezlrrl€ ,{vr11ru^?-1 x flJrw rJEU

!./'rls Yrlr{la r.dn { EJJW \.J}rd

szltll8 laNvNvdol.l Barw van
szl.I/€ sJrrwrorNoN Hlrlcr vtrm

3 vNrrssmsodclrN:rJxor HJrvH vrr?
!./ rrl 3 r.dooYqNYdrN H,lrvu \rJrl{

,1/€ SUOS] INr!.LvlI']If,{ HJIV,r VJHI
z/tI/s 3r1Tfr@orsNnl ldw vtrn

e./rr/3 lEqnro{3rol Ilrr,n,r vJhs
s./r1l3 rllsTYox? ,] H.:,rrx Ytrlru

szlir/r ?Jrd-Lia3^oq lirlw v.I{3
szl'rl3 vrNrsur^a31 H.rvl.l vin
szlr'rl8 rorssvlslx Lr\.lr v:rHr



6 
6 

3 
" 

!: 
t 

E
 =

 E
 i 

g 
I 

g;
5 

r 
r 

r 
B

 E
 E

: 
I 

E
 I 

A
 =

; 
E

 5
: 

I 
g 

i 
I3

 p
 I 

* 
i 

3I
 E

 3
 B

 5
I 

z 
s 

s 
! 

e 
i l

; 
E

 t 
E

7=
E

ee
: 

g 
E

 ?
 5

 ! 
d'

E
 H

 I 
F

 F
 -;

 
i *

 6
 g

 g
 E

 I 
X

 *
 6

 B
 d

 s
 t 

" 
E

 r 
E

 d
 H

 " 
r 

p 
E

. 
E

 E
 5

 C
 P

 P
 C

 3
: 

s 
E

 I 
k 

e

; 
-'I

3:
 

e 
E

 " 
p 

J'
a 

E
 I 

i 
8 

E
 "

<
F

E
;"

 
* 

I 
F

 I 
I 

E
t'!

 
3 

t 
E

 p
 H

 5
 !.

. 
t 

^ 
" 

H
 f 

f-
:: 

I.i
 s

 *
 9

l 
- 

?

""
se

3r
"E

3[
Il 

68
4"

" 
1"

"3
t 

" 
i8

85
1 

R
 " 

g 
? 

, 
3 

g 
] 

s 
E

 I 
r 

g 
" 

5 
] 

: 
k 

I 
S

 i 
. 

i 
"

2 
A

 
1P

. 
I 

I 
! 

6

:':
i'

:



0 5

I

F
 

F
 

<
 

r 
F

 
O

 i
 

i 
F

 
- 

i 
F

 
i 

c 
6 

>
 

>
 

i,,
 

iz
da

tu
;o

z.
nr

66
E

M
 E

 <
 

H
 i

{ 
- 

i 
2 

E
 E

 -
 

i, 
in

 {
 

! 
! 

a'
;

jii
S

 
I 

i 
6 

r 
i 

I 
E

6i
i: 

I 
i: 

d 
E

 c
 

oo
oo

.o
 r

 *
 I 

I. 
E

 B
 r 

E
 5

l 
t

: 
zi

o 
in

 
iji

jz
riL

rt
.: 

i 
)' 

i 
! 

- 
j 

; 
r 

J 
I 

L 
I 

P
 : 

ri 
i 

" 
q 

: 
- 

:-
 "

 I
 E

 g
 .

 
$ 

: 
'?

 E
 r

 6
 g

 E
ar

 
o 

oz
to

 
Z

r 
>

 
! 

F
 o

 
! 

t 
- 

I 
- 

! 
, 

--
 rn

 -
 

! 
- 

z 
N

o>
ac

!o
oo

t.l
 

za
ol

O
E

:r
xl

.i 
ilE

t;'
ia

 
rd

 
!b

t
;"

9:
!t:

99
E

r
ih

n,
lF

a:
 

;)
 

b 
o 

a 
i; 

ir 
- 

in
 E

 in
 ii

 r
 '

 
-i 

' 
r 

d 
F

 in
 . 

F
! 

? 
J 
3 

?:
 i 

- 
";

 i
 "

 D
 3

 ! 
3 

6 
! 

0 
[ 

I 
r 

e 
i 9

 5
I 

" 
I 

* 
5 

B
 t 

t 
3 

S
 '

a'
 

i3
 9

l r
; 

g 
3;

 ' E
 z

;; 
E

 I
)*

32
 

"r
=

S
l?

z?
iz

e 
""

5i
,"

F
>

E
? 

t9
3 

o:
"!

:a
i 

i 
3t

 
;:'

ItP
bi

dt
K

 
iii

 
i;

o.
j d

r 
I 

I 
;i 

i2
 

E
rH

fli
il3

e 
iS

ye
."

E
 i

 
P

tt;
,r

E
: 

>
n;

op
8;

"8
88

 
83

" 
t9

ir 
;8

 
E

8 
8:

fi;
E

;ij
 

6;
E

:
:X

 r
 

i"r
Ii 

E
5i

if;
''3

8'
ei

 
tE

E
 n

1l
; 

:6
 '

6 
i.;

F
3E

e 
r;

E
r

* 
; 

q 
zP

x=
I 

E
'

. 
98

99
 

5 
;3

 
E

 
.9

 
o 

o 
.j 

.

;;;
;;;

;;.
;;;

il

::-
:::

::l
-9

1-



;!B
l9

!:!

3

B
!

ba

s 6

4

E e

;t;
89

E
-

" 
"B

i"E F
i

s3
3!

e

t

ts B

4 Z :' I 3 !

:l-
i



B

E
:

g:
'

\

!e
5 

I

I F !

! ;
:

li

to
o 

2>
o.

 
,

3"
=

 
33

",
 

e

I;;
 

B
i;;

 
E

.=
:

i:

6

E
8g

 
E

!!J
 

d

I E

i9



! E

F

I

E n

oH
€,

:b
H

!fi

3 E 9.

5 z f

3 
d 

9 
9'

B
 

d 
I 

I 
E

 X
 d

 I 
I 

*:
a9

I 
" 

* 
d 

I 
I 

ii

ro
 

o>
t6

!{
 

to
-.

 
io

-r
ta

o\
-E

t'
i

5 E



rYsoaslc/ssrad,ras

.{r.ruroJ Y!.aers
EZCar rr/30 :lJvo rrrorNl

loJJsNNO3 dHn

szaz/zz/ea t6LrzravL

Hlrvaslo lvNotcax ;tNno, Ylrltsrs
3936f0S3 ',Or{ llmOJJ{

sz0z /s0 / 30 BJvo EJrolxr
16. rz re r/, ox zJroANr

ssNrll rNo,{d 1r5

rdro svor llxno! Yr.urt6

szoal6rl80 arvs arrorNr
rc5a6r -z9rz 'oN rJro Nr

st{J,I snordYn {r 'srdo.Ls anrroHclnY rTrl3r,o

sz0zl6!/30 srvo srro^xr

ssrrr,1rltd w{3rs Jo .rrNnoJ
9a0 a/ 6rl30 lJvo 3Jro,$Ir

a69Z ',ON SOr

zz'rr J!vd39rrr3d alrrx
ssoo{Hnol irJr^rrBs JvAfi

szat/.2lao a6n\ L

e30 ovod trlnoJ Yad3rs
63S000.0v o1l rlNorsoJ

Ezozl3rl€0 :rro 3.r10nx1

oo 3r€ar 3002 oN rnnoaJY
t.az/e1/ Lo dL .zaz/91/9a

r5 siva R 004

szoz/s7/ La aL szoz/et/eo

r. lzca oN No:]nros?r

szaa/zz/aa t5at6a-z9tz orta-o! - aoi



E E

i.
;

ts 2

ii"
zg

E
!"

I I

E t

I

;i;

.3
€'

i
};

:,

E
,

!C
r

al E
i



.zcz/2./ea e /9Latgt

s.oz/2./a0 e/ LLe1gt

\zcz/zz/eo e/ tGeTat

sBrJr'rrlvr,(Ir{IloJ \adrars
zgct oN dsr{olsrD

5 a0zl I t/ 3o ErYo gsrol1r'rr

9/ r6Sr3r ON :rJrOrNr
srcrr saoravA

'.rr30 s,rrrrrHs,r,rxnol vEasIs
!z0al 1 a/€0 arvo illrorxr

^rErLo 
raro^xr

66 r!nr1 i13€ Orlvrrreilvs

dro/a r zor

IJtl No rdSorodsr€ a9qvs
r/s J5roza :r !s'Is

gnsr )aJ\fi8 sroa rtr,avl{lorxaa rl's
r/s 1610r. e^res rxo6

vafla o-roa srNYlrlrorrad rr s

ss\.dsl! urllrvr'I

ssY{s/r usEI,vE1
.e/. ! rvus ,f,E€

sslraJvd 'sffs ri:llvd
zreaz JdrBs

s/\sr']s JJor6 llvJ v ss!'r, oJssr:r
z16z Jdrss

srssSs cNor NvJ v ss!'r, ocssrs
r rr mH ,1,!ivd

zt 06rs JNYd

vf,EB 100!/i!oa

e z0zl 50 / 3c arvo atrro^xr

Nlarv 
^rrnol 

!u3rs
sq00sa0u oN l-]f,foaa

szozlrol.0 slvo srroNr



, B 3

E
gt

s
2.

9

t

E e

E
Z

6:
H

:

B

E F 0

ge
sS

;r
E

dt
i:g

:,

n,
{,

rt
s

E

E E F 3 E :

4

I q I

9 x

27
92

"-
38

i l 8 t

zz
;;3



S
E t f, z :

A

;

f'

, z I

. 
;-

:,
s5

i,

: i



i 3 I

98
8!

--
E

<
E

2

*"
;

g0 Q
ii

z Y
9

? I I

I 3 F

9I
8!

c t

I 6 7 I

9E
8x

9t
8;

9t
8t

lE
a

! 
P

to
 

i

C
'E

P

E

E 1 I

iii
i\

f t

! 3

}F

a



Y
I

I

E
E

:
F

E
f! >

q

:i,]

^:
E

E
 

:.9
 

qq
f 

r

:y q

g 
s?

E

E

5r
 lP

9

i 
6" .3 3E

I E

d !



E P ; I 2 I

E F

F

!-
.:9

9t
i:"

!

r$ F
P 9

t 1 I E

E

I 
e9

F

a 
I 

.E
;t

3I

:, ;

E



e

:-
 

:-
:-

 
l-.

9

;x

12
E

!8

4i
 

te
 "

 "
<

a , 3

B
IT

'H
9E

 
T

T
tJ

B
B

<
!d

 
.r

do
E

.l 
d 

hz
?E

.lc E
9

I t'l

ii
I 

t-
 t

- 
l9

l
'I



'a

E F 3 I

t

]I

3

E
"1

rr
"

33
>

E

3; E 4

B I 3
a I 3

9 I E I

t 
>

,-
!

- 
6t

r

E E B !
E

3

B
}

:i E Y

f1
"

I
t-

I
l"



;

::

E

.IE
E

E
 C

-1
9

1-
 l,

3

F

::

5C

1u
l

83
e

E P I e

3 i 4 I 3

3

g E

E 3

1

F

,"
H !3

f !

:-
Y

'



B

t F

qq

I B

F

iJ F
E

T

F
E ,E

1

a

C
P

E 6

!E
iE

';E

g5
 

:i:
s

E z

I E

F
I

E

I q 3 I I

3 g

5*
E 1 E

I 9 2 E

;
::

;;
:

I'
;*

"
:,



sJxsr{auoosr
3JN\AMSNI IAUIJIIU

lj[3]l{alno:, Norrv5!&.wol
ssr'lddJls

lc\rusan/3r'rr gdlrli/ixoff d313-!

9J,JE8IIOJ
lot 11 lilrw rru3d

ssl alvs 3xrt-,]1rl.ll

!r5rH!^/hiHat.d:

ssYucdn/srNvAErxrvH/rNoHd!131

rNird sariro
NOrrJnxrsNoJ/slrvard ooolr

so\.8.dnllrNvrfirxrvr /lxoEaa,l!.1

et ec a .z/21/6 :alea



t ii

f E

8"
9'

.r

d.
5.

"9

,,s
t.3

B
d;

 
-8

-i=
-i

; E z I

I t

,l
E B "



NEW MEXICO
SIERRACOUNStde of New Medco

lny ll hiteheud
Count) Cle.A
575-E9t-2El0

Candocc Chava
Coufily Trcasuret

575-891--1524

575-891-2589

Probok Judge
575-7401900

l7l2 N. Date, Suite D
Ttuth ot Conseqaences, New Mexico 87901

County of Sierro

575-891-62t 5

Countr Shctilf
575-E91-9150Amhcr I oughn, (iru,tt)'ll,anogtr

S 7 5 -89t-62 I 5 toie S 7 5-891-9 S 18 rt.r

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sierra County, New Mexico

Resolution No. 2025-72

Indigcnt Claims

WHEREAS, the Board of Siena County Comnrissioners has received Indigent Hospital and Medical
Claim request for those persons unable to make proper restitution for Medical Services in the amount of

4 900. I I

WHf,REAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners desire to provide for the equitable and
reasonable payment of claims, and;

THf,REFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Siera County Board of Commissioners hereby approve
paymenl to those Indigent Hospital Claims in the amount of:

Sole Community Providers in the amount of $4.900.1 I

Board of County Commissioners
Sierra County, NM

TRAVIS DAY. CHAIRMAN

Attest JAMES PAXON. VICE.CTIAIRMAN

AMY W}{ITEHEAD
SIERRA COUNTY CLERK

SIERRA COLTNTY INDIGENT HEALTH CARE

WILLIAM t.IOPKINS. COMM ISSIONER

575-89t-62t 5

Truris Ddf

575-89t-62t 5

To be deducted fiom the proper funds appropriated in the 2025-2026 FY Budget. Seotember l6th. 2025



RESOLUTTON NO. 1025-71

CLAIMS APPROVED FOR $4.900,I I

VENDOR,i NAME

5464
5 184

21'/ 5
2E53
498 t

328 t

CONCORD RADIOLOGY
FILLMORE EYE CLINIC
t"UNA COI.]NTY DETENTION CENTER
MIMBRES MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS OF NM
SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL

I'OTAt-
CLAIMS

A MOt]N

s I93.54
s29.32
s3,072.30
s67l .62

$206.21
$727 .t2

l
I

I

6

I

4



OIHS

lssued 09/12l25

Source Description

Source Totals Report
County Of Sierra

Batch Dates 09/16/2025 through O911612025
For Vendor: All Vendors

Amount Billed Amount Paid

01

02
04
05

Jail - Physician Services
Jail - ln House lnmate Service
Jail - Hospital OulPatient
Jail - LabD(-Ray

105.00
3,072.30

657.34
16,834.59

29.32
3,072.30

452.8',1

1 ,345.68

Source Totals Report Detail
lnvoice #

Expenditures
Reimb/Adjustments

Grand Total

Source

20,669.23 4,900.1 1

20,669.23 4,900.'t 1

DOS Amount Bllled Amount Paid

83301'5184.1
83301.5't 84.1
83301-5184'1

1 invoices, 3 line items

tNMATE.2775'79

'l invoices, 1 linc items

91992.3281.1

1 invoices, 1 line items

01
01
0'1

04t14t2022
04t14t2022
04t't4t2022

07 /0112025

0611312025

45.00
30.00
30.00

17.50
5.91
5.91

r05.00

3,072.30

29.32

3,072.3002

04

3,072.30

657.34

3,072.30

452.81

8398'5464.2
8398"5464-3
14973'3281.2
15027',2853'.1
16854'2853'2
48801',2853'1
81401.2853.1
s1401'2853t2
81401',5464t1
13950'2853.2
13956'2853'2
10734',498'r'1
10734. 4981. 1

10734'4981'1
96016'3281'1
96016'3281'1
96016.3281.1
96016'3281'1
14973'.3281'1
14973'3281'1
14973',3281',1
't4973'3281'1
14973"3281',1
14973'3281'1

05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05

05t29t2025
05t31t2025
02t2512025
08t18t2025
0'l12912025
o8t05t2021
07 t30t2025
07 t2912025
07 t29t2025
11t15t2024
1111512024
02t20t2025
02120t2025
02120t2025
07 t0712025
07 t07 t2025
07 t07 t2025
07107 t2025
0?t25t2025
0i,25t2025
02t25t2025
0?J2512025
02t25t2025
0212512025

657.34

320.00
150.00
85.00

I ,580.36
180.00

1,348.58
197.99

1,759.95
1 15.00

4,703.43
2,163.58
1,350.00

326.48
50_00

242.75
161 .20
85.91

657.34
75.00

4ao.27
295.00
242.75
131 .00
47 .00

452.8',1

102.97
48.20
10.36
27.99
97.33

165.67
7.96

98.15
42.37

124.61
149.91
80.96

125.25
0.00

12.67
'14.96

9.32
103.

4.04
50.29

0.00
12.67
18.64
18.64



14973.3281.1

13 invoices, 25 line items

05 02125t2025 86.00

16,834.59

19.18

1,345.68

Grand Totals

16 invoices listed.
30 line items listed

20,669.23 4,900.11



















































AREVON OVERVIEW

September 16, 2025

Presented by
Sohail Suryavanshi



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 2

Powering America with affordable, reliable, and secure energy

Arevon: A Leading U.S. Renewable Energy Company

Develops, finances, builds, owns, and operates solar and energy storage projects across the U.S.

Headquartered in Scottsdale, Arizona, with a regional office in New York City

A trusted partner to utilities and businesses seeking cost-effective, sustainable energy solutions

Prioritizes American manufacturing and domestic energy production — investing in U.S. jobs, 
strengthening local economies, and advancing the country’s energy independence

Committed to being a long-term partner in project communities, with an owner’s mindset and a 
thoughtful approach to development

Develop

Construct

Own and 
Operate

Finance



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 3

Powering communities and strengthening America’s 
energy security with unmatched success in solar and 
energy storage

Arevon’s Industry Leadership

1.2+ Million
Homes Powered 

Annually (equivalent)

1 GW
Under Construction

17 States
Operating Projects1

$10+ Billion
Operating Assets

5.3+ GW
Owned and Operated1

9+ GW
Development Pipeline

1Includes utility-scale solar, energy storage, and 
solar-plus-storage projects as well as distributed 
generation assets.



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 4

From concept to performance, expertly developing, constructing, and operating a diverse suite 
of advanced renewable energy technologies

Arevon's Leadership in Utility-Scale Energy Generation

23 Operational 
Solar Projects

 2,800+ MWdc in operation

690+ MWdc under construction

Solar Energy Storage Solar-plus-Storage
3 Operational 

Energy Storage Projects
460 MW in operation

300 MW under construction

4 Operational 
Solar-plus-Storage Projects
1,100+ MWdc of solar and 500+ 

MW of storage in operation



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 5

Sierra County, NM

• Proposed project will be located near 
Engle, NM.

• Located on approximately 1,850 acres.
• Land parcels leased under option till 2029.
• Project will be operational for 30 years 

with the option to renew for another 20 
years.

• Will tie-in to 345kV El Paso Electric 
transmission Line east of project

• Easements – Likely need several road and 
railway crossing agreements

Proposed Solar & Storage Facility Information

Note: Project Information presented is accurate as of 09/16/25 but is subject to change



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 6

• Once the project is active, our operations 
and maintenance team will be on-site 
frequently to address any immediate 
needs and ensure everything runs 
smoothly.

• Environmental Stewards – Biological and 
cultural studies will be performed to avoid 
any significant impacts to wildlife, 
wetlands, plant species, and historical 
artifacts.

• Increase job creation and revenue in 
county during the construction phase of 
the project.

Additional information and Benefits



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 7

Project Timeline

Note: Timelines listed are tentative and subject to change



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 8

Proposed Project Layout

Engle

Note: The project layout shown above is a preliminary design and is subject to change



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 9

• Clarity on state and county owned roads, request for GiS Map.
• Potential road crossing easements 
• Permits
• Potential road vacations (if applicable)

Specific Asks of Sierra County



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 10

Questions?



©2025 — Arevon Energy, Inc. All Rights Reserved 11

Thank You!















County Road Closure Request Form 

Instructions: 
Please complete all sections of this form and submit it to the County Manager's Office.  All 
requests will need to approved by the County Commission.  Forms are due to the County 
Managers office by Monday prior to the scheduled Commission Meeting.  Incomplete 
forms may delay the review process. 

SECTION 1: APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Name of Applicant/Organization: 
Contact Person: 
Phone Number: 
Email Address: 
Mailing Address: 

SECTION 2: EVENT DETAILS 

Name of Event: 
Event Description: 
Date(s) of Road Closure: 
Time of Closure (Start and End): 
   Start Time: 
   End Time: 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Shelly K. Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 



SECTION 3: ROAD CLOSURE DETAILS 

Specific Road(s) to be Closed: 
Location/Exact Boundaries of Closure: 
Estimated Number of Attendees: 

SECTION 4: TRAFFIC AND SAFETY PLAN (Please attach documentation) 

Proposed Detour Route: 

Emergency Plan: 

Traffic Control Plan: 

SECTION 5: ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS (Please attach 
documentation) 

Public Notification Plan: 

Insurance and Liability Coverage: 

Additional Resources Needed (if any): 

SECTION 6: SIGNATURE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I am responsible for complying with all conditions 
set by the County and understand that failure to comply may result in additional costs or 
denial of future requests. 

Signature of Applicant: 

Date: 



SECTION 7: FOR COUNTY USE ONLY 

Road Department Review 
Recommendation: [ ] Approve [ ] Approve with Conditions [ ] Deny 
Comments/Conditions: 

Sheriff’s Department Review 
Recommendation: [ ] Approve [ ] Approve with Conditions [ ] Deny 
Comments/Conditions: 

County Manager’s Office Use Only 
Date of County Commission Meeting: 
County Commission Decision: [ ] Approve [ ] Approve with Conditions [ ] Deny 
Additional Notes/Conditions: 

Approved by County Commission on: 

Signature of County Manager: 

Date: 



 

 
4605 Research Park Circle, Suite A • Las Cruces, NM 88001 • P (575) 267-8500 • www.spaceportamerica.com 

Insurance. Customer must carry comprehensive general liability insurance or, alternatively, 
will provide suf�icient proof of self-insurance, for advertising liability, premises liability 
contractual liability and products/completed operations of no less than one million dollars 
combined single limit per occurrence and in the aggregate as respects products. Customer will 
also procure and maintain policies of insurance for bodily injury, including death, property 
damage, and vehicle liability insurance for all vehicles used in its operation at, to, or from, the 
Spaceport, in amounts not less than one million dollars per occurrence. Said policies of 
insurance will include coverage for premises, activities off premises and operations involving 
the Mission and Customer’s contractual liability to the Authority under this Agreement. 
Contractual liability coverage will speci�ically insure Indemni�ication provisions of this 
Agreement to the maximum extent possible consistent with the conditions and exclusions of 
the policy. Customer shall furnish a certi�icate of insurance for these polices to Authority upon 
request. The insurance coverage required hereunder shall name the following as additional 
insured parties: 

New Mexico 
Spaceport 
Authority 4605 
Research Park 
Circle Suite A Las 
Cruces, NM 88001 
575-267-8500 

State Land Office/Commissioner of Public Lands 

P.O. Box 1148 
Santa Fe 
NM 
87504-
1148 505-
827-5760 

The amounts of insurance required in this Section are minimums only; the Authority will be 
entitled to the full benefit and protection of any higher dollar amount of coverage stated in an 
insurance policy actually carried by Customer. The insurance requirements set forth in this 
Agreement will not be construed as a representation by the Authority that the satisfaction of 
such requirements will be sufficient to protect Customer. 
 
 



 

 
4605 Research Park Circle, Suite A • Las Cruces, NM 88001 • P (575) 267-8500 • www.spaceportamerica.com 

 
 



 

2 

 



1205 Camino Carlos Rey   |   Santa Fe, NM 87507   |   www.srca.nm.gov 

       Hon. Maggie Toulouse Oliver  Hon. Joseph Maestas             
Chairman/State Auditor  

July 29, 2025

Candance Chavez
Sierra County Treasurer's Office
712 N. Date Street, Suite B
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Dear Ms. Chavez:

Thank you for your Notice of Destruction (no. 35304) dated July 28, 2025.  We appreciate your application of 
established records management practices  and your compliance with the Public Records Act.  We have reviewed 
the items listed in your notices and have determined that the items do not have historical significance that would 
warrant their transfer to the State Record Center and Archives.  Therefore, we have no objection to the 
destruction of the records. 

Recommended methods are:

For confidential or sensitive information: through a bonded and insured document recycling vendor by shredding in 
such a manner that the information cannot be read, interpreted, or reconstructed.

For all other records: recycling by a bonded document recycling vendor, shredding, or dumpsite burial. 

If you have any questions or need further assistance, please contact Tanya Vigil at (505) 476-7921. 

Sincerely,  

Rick Hendricks 
State Records Administrator 

Enclosure(s) 

RH/tv

cc: History File 

Hon. Raul Torrez           
Attorney General  Secretary of State

    Stephanie Wilson
   State  Law Librarian, Supreme Court Law Library           Secretary, General Services Department

Debra Garcia y Griego          
Secretary, Department of Cultural Affairs





 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 1 of 8 

 

CONTRACT NO. DAC__23-100___ 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

DOÑA ANA COUNTY AND  
SIERRA COUNTY 

FOR THE HOUSING OF ADULT DETAINEES 
 

 This Agreement is entered into by and between the Board of County Commissioners 
of Doña Ana County, New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as “Doña Ana”, and the Board of 
County Commissioners of Sierra County, hereinafter referred to as “Sierra”, both political 
subdivisions of the State of New Mexico and referred to collectively as “the Parties”. 

WHEREAS, Sierra County desires to make provision with Doña Ana County for the 
detention of offenders in the criminal custody of Sierra County; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties 
do hereby agree as follows: 

I. DEFINITIONS 

a. “Facility” means the detention center of the receiving county. 

b. “Receiving county” means the county wherein the detainee shall be housed 
pursuant to the terms of this agreement. 

c. “Sending county” means the county wherein the crime of which the detainee is 
accused is alleged to have been committed. 

II. SERVICES 

1. BASIC SERVICES.   

It shall be the responsibility of the receiving county to confine and supervise detainees 
committed to or in the custody of the sending county at the receiving county’s detention 
facility (hereinafter “Facility”).  The receiving county shall provide to such detainees 
care, including the furnishing of three meals per day; to provide for their physical needs; 
to retain them in safe, supervised custody; to maintain proper discipline and control; and 
otherwise to comply with applicable law; including the standards, policies, and 
procedures applicable to the operations of the Facility and the American Correctional 
Association standards common to jails. The receiving county retains the right to refuse 
the admission of any detainee for any reason.  

2. MEDICAL SERVICES.   

a. The sending county will retain and retrieve detainees who are:    

i. rejected by the receiving county upon initial medical screening. 

 



 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 2 of 8 

 

b. The sending county will: 

i. Upon delivery of a detainee to the Facility, if applicable, furnish to the 
Facility a complete medical packet containing the complete medical 
history of the detainee. If the detainee does not meet qualified conditions, 
the Facility may refuse the detainee. 

ii. Pay any medical expenses incurred, without limitation, including 
medically related transportation or security. 

c. The receiving county will: 

i. Provide detainees from the sending county who require removal from the 
Facility for emergency medical services with the same medical care and 
services provided to detainees of the receiving county; if the medical care 
is outside of the receiving county the sending county will be responsible 
for the transportation of detainee. If medical care is inside the receiving 
county the receiving county will transport detainee with the cost being 
billed to the sending county.  

ii. Notify the sending county of emergency situations as soon as practicable. 

3. TRANSPORTATION 

Transportation is the responsibility of the sending county. The sending county shall 
transport detainees to the Facility; return detainees who are not accepted into the Facility; 
transport detainees to and from scheduled Court appearances. Should the sending county 
request the receiving county to provide transportation, the sending county shall be 
responsible for costs incurred and the costs associated with the specific transportation 
needs shall be approved in advance between the Parties. 

4. PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT OF 2003 

The Facility shall provide all detainees with a safe and secure environment free from the 
threat of any sexual misconduct to include sexual harassment, sexual assault, or sexual 
abuse.  The Facility shall maintain a policy of zero tolerance of all forms of sexual 
misconduct between detainees, staff, contractors, volunteers, and other detainees, and 
comply with the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 (PREA) for prevention, detention, 
reporting, and treatment of victims of sexual misconduct. 

       

5. ACCEPTANCE AND REMOVAL 

The receiving county retains final and absolute right to refuse acceptance, or request 
removal, of any detainee based on violent or disruptive behavior, classification status, or 
found to have a medical condition that requires medical care beyond the scope of the 
Facility's healthcare provider. The receiving county shall notify the sending county upon 
such determination and shall allow the sending county reasonable time to make 
alternative arrangements for the detainee. 

 



 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 3 of 8 

 

 

III. COMPENSATION 

1. The sending county shall compensate the receiving county at the current daily rate in 
effect for detainees. As applicable for the sending county effective July 1, 2022 for Fiscal 
Year 2023, the prisoner daily rate is $120.00 per detainee per day. The daily rates are 
subject to annual increases effective July 1 of each fiscal year based on the Consumer 
Price Index, US City Average, All Items, Not Seasonally Adjusted, 12 months percent 
change for each calendar year (January through December) calculated using the Bureau 
of Labor Statistics website at http://www.bls.gov/data.   

a. A day shall refer to a calendar day of twenty-four (24) hours measured from 
midnight. 

b. A partial day shall be considered a full day. 

c. The sending county shall be responsible for the cost of all off-site medical 
appointments and hospital stays. This includes but is not limited to transport costs 
and security staff (contracted security staff or Detention officers depending on 
availability.) Medical services may be billed separately. 

d. The sending county shall make payment to the receiving county within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of monthly invoice. 

e. Any charges billed to the sending county that are not appropriately charged to the 
sending county may be deducted from the invoice or credited on the next billing 
period.  A refund will be made if there is no subsequent billing period.  

2. If the receiving Classification system identifies a detainee as a medium-security risk, an 
additional twenty ($25.00) per day per detainee shall be charged.   

3. If the receiving Classification system identifies a detainee as a maximum-security risk, an 
additional twenty ($55.00) per day per detainee shall be charged.  

4. If the receiving Classification system and Medical/Mental Health Staff identifies a 
detainee as a mental patient requiring twenty-four (24) hour care or who is assigned to 
the medical pod, an additional one hundred ($100.00) per day per detainee shall be 
charged.  

5. The receiving county shall notify the sending county upon classification if the detainee’s 
classification requires additional charge.  If events transpire that elevate the security risk 
of the detainee, the sending county shall be notified upon such determination.  A three (3) 
day grace period shall be granted to allow the sending county time to retrieve the detainee 
or sustain the charge.  

IV. INSPECTION 

1. In Person.  The receiving county agrees to allow reasonable periodic inspections of the 
Facility by sending county personnel.  Findings by the sending county shall be shared 
with the Facility administrator in order to promote improvements to the Facility 
operations or conditions of confinement for detainees of the sending county.  The 

http://www.bls.gov/data


 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 4 of 8 

 

receiving county may postpone such inspection if, in its sole discretion, the receiving 
county determines that such access to the Facility could pose a health or safety risk to 
personnel of either the sending county, the receiving county, or to the detainee population 
during detainee count or when any special operation of the Facility in progress. 

2. Audits.  Upon at least five (5) business days written notice and during normal business 
hours, there shall be made available to the sending county for examination all of the 
receiving county’s records with respect to the areas covered by this Agreement.  The 
receiving county shall permit the sending county to audit, examine, and make excerpts or 
transcripts from such records relating to detainees of the sending county and this 
Agreement.   

3. Records.  Records shall be maintained by the receiving county in accordance with 
applicable law and matters covered by this Agreement in the areas of housing, medical, 
and payments received.  Records shall be maintained for a period required by federal, 
state, and local regulations and laws.  The sending county shall be responsible, to the 
extent of its negligence, for any and all losses, liabilities, judgments, awards and costs 
arising out of or related to any claim in whole or part that the sending county failed to 
disclose any detainee information in violation of the Freedom of Information Act or the 
Inspection of Public Records Act. 

V. TERM AND TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall become effective upon approval both parties.  The term of this 
Agreement is for one (1) year from the date the last party approved this Agreement (the 
“effective date”).  This Agreement will automatically renew on July 1st of each fiscal year for 
an additional year unless either party gives written notice of its intent to terminate the 
Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written 
notice delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of 
termination. By such termination, neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for 
performance or failure to perform prior to the date of termination.  Termination will only 
become effective when the sending county removes its last detainee from the Facility and 
compensates the receiving county for all amounts due and owing under this Agreement.  

VI. PROPERTY/SURPLUS FUNDS/STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY  

1. Property.  No property shall be acquired as a result of this Agreement, and it does not 
involve the disposition, division, or distribution of any property.  The disposition of 
records generated by performance of this Agreement shall be decided by the parties upon 
termination. 

2. Surplus Funds.  There will be no surplus money as a result of this Agreement as the fees 
billed by the receiving county are for services rendered to the sending county, and the 
fees collected by the receiving county shall be transferred to the receiving county’s 
general fund as required by law. 

3. Strict Accountability.  Each party shall be strictly accountable for all receipts and 
disbursements under this Agreement.   

VII. AMENDMENT 



 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 5 of 8 

 

1. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties and supersedes any and all 
other agreements or understandings, oral or written, whether previous to the execution 
hereof or contemporaneous herewith. 

2. This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in 
writing executed by the parties. 

3. Requested changes in the Services to be performed, including any increase or decrease in 
the amount of the receiving county’s compensation, which are mutually agreed upon by 
and between the parties, shall be incorporated in written amendment(s) to this 
Agreement. 

4. All prior written agreements between the parties for the housing of detainees are repealed 
with the approval of this Agreement. 

 

 

VIII. APPROPRIATIONS 

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement are 
contingent upon the governing body of each party making the appropriations necessary for 
the performance of this Agreement. 

IX. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither party shall assign any interest in this Agreement, nor shall it transfer any interest in 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party hereto. 

X. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be construed in agreement with the laws of the State of New Mexico. 
The parties shall keep fully informed of and shall also comply with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations and all orders and decrees of bodies or 
tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or 
employed, or the work, or which in any way affect the conduct of the work. By way of 
illustration, but not of limitation, the parties shall comply with laws relating to employment 
eligibility including: the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (Public Law 99-603) 
and the Immigration Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-649) regarding employment verification 
and retention of verification forms for any individual(s) hired on or after November 6, 1986, 
that will perform any labor or services under this MOA. The parties shall comply with all 
federal statutes relating to non-discrimination including, but not limited to: Title VII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended 
[20 U.S.C.A. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Public Law 93-112)], which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap; the Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act of 1967 (Public Law 90-202), as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
(Public Law 101-336); and all amendments to each, and all requirements imposed by the 
regulations issued pursuant to these acts, especially 45 CFR Part 80 (relating to race, color, 



 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 6 of 8 

 

and national origin), 45 CFR Part 84 (relating to handicap), 45 CFR Part 86 (relating to sex), 
and 45 CFR Part 91 (relating to age). 

XI. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Any confidential information, not subject to disclosure under the Inspection of Public 
Records Act, given to or developed by either party, its officers, directors, employees, agents, 
or sub-consultants in the performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall 
not be made available to any individual, organization, or other entity by either party without 
prior written approval of the other party. 

XII. CONFLICTS OF LAW 

If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with governing federal or state law or County 
ordinances, then that law or ordinance shall supersede the conflicting provision of this 
Agreement. 

 

 

XIII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

1. Disputes shall be resolved by arbitration in accordance with the rules and procedures of 
the American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered may be 
entered into any court having jurisdiction. 

2. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico.   

3. In the event of litigation, venue shall be in the receiving county. 

4. Should it become necessary for the receiving county to institute legal action to collect 
amounts due and prevail, the receiving county shall recover reasonable attorney’s fees 
and costs from the sending county. 

XIV. HIPPA COMPLIANCE 

As applicable, the parties agree to comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and related regulations, as amended 
(“HIPAA”) in the event either party receives patient records or information (Protected 
Health Information as defined by HIPAA). 

XV. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Neither the receiving county nor its employees are considered to be employees of the sending 
county for any purpose whatsoever.  The receiving county is considered an Independent 
Contractor with respect to the sending county at all times in the performance described 
herein. 

XVI. LIABILITY 

Each party shall be solely responsible for fiscal or other sanctions occasioned as a result of its 
own violation or alleged violation requirements applicable to the performance of this 
Agreement.  Each party shall be liable for its own actions and shall not be responsible for 



 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 7 of 8 

 

liability incurred as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection with this 
Agreement. Any liability incurred by either party in connection with this Agreement is 
subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, §§41-4-1, et. 
seq., NMSA 1978 as amended. 

XVII. NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or certified, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows: 

To Doña Ana County:   To Sierra County:   

Bryan Baker, Director   Patrick Flores, Detention Administrator 
Doña Ana County Detention Center Sierra County Detention Center 
1850 Copper Loop   311 N. Date  
Las Cruces, New Mexico 88005 Truth or Consequences, NM, 87901 
Telephone: 575-647-7600                  Telephone: 575-894-2537 
Email: bryanb@donaanacounty.org Email: pflores@sierraco.org 

XVIII. SEVERABILITY 

If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding will not 
affect the validity or enforceability of any other part of this Agreement as long as the 
remainder of the Agreement is reasonably capable of completion. 

XIX. SUBCONTRACTING 

Services covered by this Agreement may be subcontracted, and the subcontractor shall be 
subject to and adhere to each applicable provision of this Agreement. 

XX. WAIVER 

Any waiver of any breach of any condition in this Agreement to be kept and performed by 
either party shall not be deemed or considered as a continuing waiver and shall not operate to 
bar or prevent either party from declaring a default for any succeeding breach of the same 
condition or another condition. 

XXI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

All of the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior 
agreement, covenant, or understanding, oral or written, of the parties or their agents shall be 
valid or enforceable unless specifically embodied or incorporated by reference herein.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives on the date of last signature below. 

 
Sierra County 
 
 

mailto:bryanb@donaanacounty.org


 

IGA Doña Ana County Detention Center   Page 8 of 8 

 

             
Amber Vaughn       Date 
County Manager    
    
 
Doña Ana County 

 
 

             
Scott Andrews      Date 
County Manager 



  Page 1 of 1 

DAC Contract No. 22-114 
Amendment No. 1 

 
AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 

BETWEEN DOÑA ANA COUNTY AND  
SIERRA COUNTY 

This Amendment to the above-mentioned Intergovernmental Agreement is made and entered into by and 
between Doña Ana County (hereinafter the "County") and Sierra County (hereinafter "Contractor") 
hereby referred to collectively as the "Parties". 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered the above Intergovernmental Agreement to provide housing of juvenile 
detainees at the Doña County Detention Center; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to ARTICLE 8 – AMENDMENTS of the original contract the Parties agree to a 
change in compensation for services which is hereby incorporated into the contract; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is mutually agreed upon as follows:  

 
1. Section III, Compensation, the current Juvenile prisoner daily rate of $200 per detainee per day is 

hereby increased in accordance with the prevailing rates for providing the services to $475 per 
detainee per date with an effective date of 7.1.2025. The new daily rate will remain constant from 
July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026 (“FY 2026”). 
 

2. That all terms and conditions of the original Intergovernmental Agreement and any amendments 
not inconsistent herewith, shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

This Amendment shall be effective when signed by both Parties below or in counterpart, and 
photocopy, facsimile, electronic or other copies shall have the same effect for all purposes of an ink-
signed original. 
 
 
Doña Ana County 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Scott Andrews 
County Manager 
 
 
Date:__________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Date:__________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 













Agreement Number: 25-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
 

WORK AND FINANCIAL PLAN 
between 

 SIERRA COUNTY  
and 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 

WILDLIFE SERVICES (APHIS-WS) 
for 

July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 
 

 
Pursuant to Cooperative Service Agreement No. 24-73-35-2390-RA between the county of Sierra 
and APHIS-WS, this Work Plan defines the objectives, plan of action, resources and budget for the 
maintenance of an Integrated Wildlife Damage Management (IWDM) program to protect residents, 
property, livestock, crops, and natural resources from damage caused by predators and other 
nuisance wildlife to be conducted from July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026. 
 
USDA-WS is a federal agency with a broad mission that includes carrying out wildlife damage 
management activities. USDA-WS has continuously maintained an effective IWDM program to 
resolve conflicts with wildlife throughout New Mexico, including Sierra County. USDA-WS is 
available and qualified to conduct wildlife damage management services as necessary to accomplish 
the County’s goals. 
 
 
I. OBJECTIVES/GOALS 
 
Wildlife Services’ overall goal is to maintain a biologically-sound IWDM program to assist 
property owners, businesses, private citizens, and governmental agencies in resolving wildlife 
damage problems and conduct control activities in accordance with applicable Federal, State and 
local laws and regulations.  Assistance may be in the form of providing technical assistance or 
direct control activities.  Recommendations and control activities will ensure long term solutions 
and incorporate the Integrated Wildlife Damage Management approach.   
 
The scope of this program is limited only by the financial resources allocated by the cooperator and 
APHIS-WS.  Although successful elimination of any specific threat is not guaranteed, all reasonable 
efforts will be made to resolve or mitigate human-wildlife conflicts within financial and regulatory 
constraints. 
 
 
II. PLAN OF ACTION 
 
To accomplish this goal, the following general field services will be provided: 
 
Non-lethal application – this will be the primary consideration.  
  
Technical Assistance – WS will provide technical support to Sierra County on other issues that 



Agreement Number: 25-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
may impact predatory and/or nuisance species control including habitat modifications, response 
design, and recommendations through demonstration and instruction of wildlife damage prevention 
and/or control techniques 
 
Predator Identification & Removal - when livestock, crop or natural resource damage is verified  
 
Nuisance Wildlife Removal - when property damage is verified  
 
Removal of Wildlife Displaying Aggressive Behavior - causing actual injury to county residents.  
 
Outreach – include meeting with the constituents of the county, school group demonstrations, and 
predator/damage awareness training.  
 
To provide these basic services, APHIS-WS will: 
 

1. Assign one Wildlife Biological Technician per the period of performance for this Work 
Financial Plan averaging at least 1040 hours per year, distributed among direct control 
activities, technical assistance, USDA/WS-required administrative tasks, and annual leave.   

 
2. Procure and maintain a vehicle, tools, supplies, and other specialized equipment as deemed 

necessary by the State Director to accomplish the objectives identified in this plan. 
 

3. Implement at least two attempts to resolve requests for assistance using non-lethal methods, 
on site and on separate days, before resorting to lethal methods, unless the animal poses an 
imminent threat to human health and safety, property, livestock, companion animals or is 
part of confirmed depredation(s). 

 
4. Safely & professionally utilize approved wildlife damage management tools/equipment 

including firearms (including high-pressure air rifles), advanced optics, assorted snaring 
devices, trailing hounds, all-terrain vehicles, foot-hold traps for the protection of endangered 
species and public safety, cage-type & other specialized traps, deterrent methods/devices 
(including pyrotechnics), Environmental Protection Agency approved toxicants (including 
euthanasia drugs), night vision equipment and electronic calling devices.    

 
a. Field Specialists will ensure that the most effective, efficient, and humane tools will 

be utilized. All activities will be conducted in a safe manner. 
 

b. Equipment will be maintained in good working order to help prevent accidents 
and/or hazardous situations. 
 

c. Foot-hold traps with offset jaws will utilize pan tension devices sufficient to reduce 
the likelihood of capturing non-target species, be attached to an electronic 
monitoring device intended to notify Wildlife Services when a foot-hold trap is 
sprung. If such a device is not attached, Wildlife Services, Volunteers or the 
Requester will inspect each trap within twenty-four hours or less. 

 
d. When M-44 toxicants are used, at least two, three-foot tall warning signs in English 



Agreement Number: 25-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
and in Spanish shall be placed within five feet of the M-44 device to notify the 
public that poisonous devices are in the area, to alert them of the toxic nature of 
M-44’s, and warn of their danger to pets.   

 
5. Conduct all control activities with trained USDA-WS employees and volunteers. 

 
a. Technical Assistance may be in the form of recommendations for implementing 

various non-lethal techniques.  Official USDA/WS pamphlets and/or handouts may 
be used to convey this information to the public. 
 

b. Direct Control activities may include, but are not limited to the monitoring, trapping, 
dispersal, and shooting of known and potential predators or nuisance wildlife. 

 
6. Wildlife services shall submit quarterly reports to the county detailing the following: 

 
a. The type of land upon which contractual activities were carried on, such as BLM, 

county, municipal, military, private, or state, and the identity of the  
requesting entity other than the names of individuals, and the number of person-day 
visits per entity, 

 
b. The number of hours worked per employee, 

 
c. The number and types of species captured and by what method, and the number and 

types of species euthanized and by what method, 
 

d. The number and types of non-targeted, unintentional species euthanized, if any, 
 

e. The number and types of species re-located, freed or dispersed, 
 

f. A damage summary, including reported and verified losses for 
 

i. Agriculture, 
ii. Health and safety. 

iii. Property, including animals, landscape and structures, 
 

g. Number of outreach efforts by species provided or supported for the purpose of 
educating the public on how to coexist with wildlife and manage property in such a 
way to avoid wildlife conflicts, and the estimated or actual number of people 
reached, 
 

h. The number of requests for assistance by species and the reasons therefor, such as 
livestock protection, health, human safety, nuisance animal, or property protection, 
and, 
 

i. The results of any blood tests taken by species 
 



Agreement Number: 25-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
 
USDA-WS will cooperate with the New Mexico Department of Game and Fish, the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service, County and local city governments, and other entities to ensure compliance with 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations. 
 
 
III. PROCUREMENT 
 
Purchase of supplies, equipment and miscellaneous needs including salaries will be made by 
APHIS-WS.  All expenditures will be processed through APHIS’s Financial Management 
Modernization Initiative (FMMI) system and charged to the Cooperator as described in the 
Financial Plan. 
 
IV. STIPULATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

1. All operations shall have the joint concurrence of USDA-WS and Sierra County and shall be 
under the direct supervision of USDA-WS. All operations will adhere to the specific work 
financial plan requirements required by both USDA-WS and Sierra County. USDA-WS 
will conduct the program in accordance with its established operating policies and all 
applicable state and federal laws and county regulations and requirements.  
 

2. Control on Public Lands: An Agreement for Control of Animal Damage on Non-private 
Property (WS Form 12 A) or an appropriate NEPA document will be executed between 
USDA-WS and the public land administrator(s)/manager(s) before any USDA-WS work is 
conducted. 

  
3. USDA-WS will use only USDA-WS employees and volunteers. All USDA-WS personnel 

will follow WS Directive 2.510, which prohibits benefiting personally from any animals(s) 
whole or in part, taken while conducting official duties.  
 

4. The program will be supervised by District Supervisor Rudy Fajardo (575) 527-6980. 
Monitoring and authoritative oversight will be by the WS, New Mexico State Director, Jon 
Grant (505) 346-2640.  

 
5. In the absence of a finalized county budget, a letter of intent must be provided pending final 

budget approval. The cooperative Wildlife Services Program, due to Congressional Federal 
appropriations, law cannot continue unless a mutual agreement is negotiated by June 30, 
2025. 

 
 

6. COST ESTIMATE FOR SERVICES 
 
USDA-WS shall submit quarterly bills for actual costs incurred to USDA-WS for performance of  
 
work as delineated in the Work/Financial Plan, not to exceed $46,900.00 annually.  Such costs may 



Agreement Number: 25-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
include but are not limited to salaries/benefits/employees’ recognition, vehicle use, supplies, 
equipment and USDA overhead. An estimate itemization of expenses are listed below; however, 
funds may be distributed between itemized categories as needed. 
 
 
Cost Element  Cost to 

Cooperator 
Cost Share 
(Paid by 
Federal 

Appropriations) 

Full Cost 

Personnel Compensation  $         34,276.05   $      26,794.95   $        61,071.00  
Travel  $                      -     $        1,109.00   $          1,109.00  
Vehicles  $                      -     $        7,800.00   $          7,800.00  
Other Services  $              409.41   $           800.00   $          1,209.41  
Supplies and Materials  $                      -   $        2,000.00   $          2,000.00  
Equipment  $           2,200.11   $           500.00   $          2,700.11  

     

Subtotal (Direct Charges)  $         36,885.57   $      39,003.95   $        75,889.52  

     
Pooled Job Costs 11.00%  $           4,057.41   NA   $          4,057.41  
Indirect Costs 16.15%  $           5,957.02   NA   $          5,957.02  

Agreement Total                 $         46,900.00   $      39,003.95   $        85,903.95  
Percentage Cost Share  55% 45% 100% 

     
The distribution of the budget from this Financial Plan may vary as necessary to accomplish the 
purpose of this agreement, but may not exceed: $85,903.95 

 
In accordance with the Debt Collection Improvement Act (DCIA) of 1996, bills issued by WS are 
due and payable within 30 days of receipt.  The DCIA requires that all debts older than 120 days be 
forwarded to debt collection centers or commercial collection agencies for more aggressive action.  
Debtors have the option to verify, challenge and compromise claims, and have access to 
administrative appeals procedures which are both reasonable and protect the interests of the United 
States. 
                                 
The financial point of contact for this Work Plan/Financial Plan is Patsy Baca, Budget Analyst 
(505) 346-2640.  This plan has been approved by the USDA APHIS WS Western Regional Office 
for use in the State of New Mexico for cost-share agreements.  Copies of this approval are available 
upon request. 
 
Sierra County Point of Contact: 
Amber Vaughn (County Manager)  (575) 894-6215 
Becky Mena (Finance Director)  (575) 894-6215 
 
 



Agreement Number: 25-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COMISSIONERS 
Tax Identification Number:  856000251 
 
 
 
_______________________________               ___________________ 
Amber Vaughn      Date                  
County Manager       
 
 
 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 
WILDLIFE SERVICES 
Albuquerque, NM 
Tax Identification Number:  41-0696271       
 
 
 
_______________________________               ___________________    
Jon Grant                            Date 
State Director, New Mexico          
   
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________               ___________________    
Wendy Anderson  
Western Region, New Mexico    Date      
 



Transportation Project Fund Page 1 of 9 FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019

Contract No. 
Vendor No. 0000054401 
Control No. HW2LP10080 

TRANSPORTATION PROJECT FUND 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is between the New Mexico Department of Transportation (Department) and 
Sierra County (Public Entity). This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to sign 
it on the signature page below.   

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-78 and 18.27.6 NMAC, the parties agree as 
follows: 

1. Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Transportation Project Funds (TPF) to the Public
Entity for the following project scope Ph 2 Sugar Sand Bridge-Construction, Construction
Management, Inspection, and Testing for replacement of the existing single-lane bridge
#6680 (known as Sugar Sand Bridge) over the Rio Grande with a new two-lane bridge, and
associated bridge approach modifications.  (Project or CN LP10080).  This Agreement
specifies and delineates the rights and duties of the parties.

2. Project Funding.
a. The estimated total cost for the Project is Three Million Six Hundred Seventy Five

Thousand  Dollars and No Cents ($3,675,000.00) to be funded in proportional share by
the parties as follows:

Project Funding 
Department 

Share 
Public Entity 

Share 
Total Cost 

Funding Source 1 95% 5% 
FY 2026 Transportation Project 
Fund  
For the purpose stated above in 
Section 1. 

$3,491,250.00 $183,750.00 $3,675,000.00 

 Total Transportation Project Funds     $3,675,000.00 

b. The Public Entity is responsible for all costs that exceed Project funding.
c. All allocated funds must be spent by June 30, 2028.
d. The Public Entity represents that no federal funds will be used to finance the Project.
e. The Public Entity must repay Project funding to the Department if:

1. The Project is cancelled or partially performed.



Transportation Project Fund    Page 2 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

2. A final audit conducted by the Department at Project completion determines the 
following: an overpayment, unexpended monies or ineligible expenses. 

 
3.  The Department:  

a.  Shall distribute the funds, identified in Section 2a1, in a lump sum to the Public Entity 
after: 
1. The Department has received this Agreement fully executed with a Resolution of 

Sponsorship attached as Exhibit B. 
2. Receipt of a letter requesting funds, which includes the following Project documents: 

Notice of Award/Work Order and Notice to Proceed for the Project.   
3. If a Department’s or another entity’s right-of-way is involved, a permit or letter of 

approval/authorization, from the entity with jurisdiction over the Project right-of-way. 
b.  Will not: 

1. Perform any detailed technical reviews of Project scope, cost, budget, schedule, 
design or other related documents;  

2. Have any involvement in the construction phase;  
3. Be involved in permit preparation or the review or coordination with regulatory 

agencies.  
4. Conduct periodic assurance inspections or comparison material testing. 
5. Participate in resolving bidding and contract disputes between the Public Entity and 

contractors. 
c.  May perform Project monitoring that might consist of the following: 

1. Review of Project status to ensure that project goals, objectives, performance 
requirements, timelines, milestone completion budgets and other guidelines are being 
met. 

2. Request written Project status reports. 
3. Conduct a review of the Local Entity’s performance and administration of the Project 

funds identified in Section 2a. 
d.  Reserves the right, upon receipt of the Public Entity’s Certification of Completion, 

Exhibit A, to request additional documents that demonstrate Project completion.  
e. If required, the District Engineer or designee, will conduct a Project review to determine 

if permit is required from the Department.  If there is a determination that a permit is not 
required, a letter of approval and authorization will be forwarded to the Public Entity. 

 
4.  The Public Entity Shall:  

a. Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1. 
b. Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules, 

regulations and ordinances. 
c. Be responsible for all design activities necessary to advance the Project to construction 

and coordinate construction.   
d. Unless otherwise specified in a letter of authorization or permit, design and construct the 

Project in accordance with the Public Entity’s established design standards. 
e. Have sole responsibility and control of all project phases and resulting quality of the 

completed work.   
f. If the Project is in full or on a portion of a state highway, on a Department right of way or 

a National Highway System route: 



Transportation Project Fund    Page 3 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

1. Obtain from the Department a permit in accordance with 18.31.6.14 NMAC, State 
Highway Access Management Requirements or a letter of authorization; and 

2. Design and construct the Project in accordance with standards established by the 
Department.  

g. Adopt a written resolution of Project support that includes a commitment to funding, 
ownership, liability and maintenance. The resolution is attached to this Agreement as 
Exhibit B. 

h.  Consider placing pedestrian, bicycle and equestrian facilities in the Project design in 
accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-62.  

i. Comply with any and all state, local and federal regulations including the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) and laws regarding noise ordinances, air quality, surface water 
quality, ground water quality, threatened and endangered species, hazardous materials, 
historic and cultural properties, and cultural resources. 

j. Be responsible for all permit preparation, review and coordination with regulatory 
agencies. 

k. Cause all designs, plans, specifications and estimates to be performed under the direct 
supervision of a Registered New Mexico Professional Engineer, in accordance with 
NMSA 1978 Section 61-23-26. 

l. Allow the Department to perform a final inspection of the Project and all related 
documentation to determine if the Project was constructed in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement.  At the Department’s request, provide additional 
documentation to demonstrate completion of the required terms and conditions.   

m. Meet with the Department, as needed, or provide Project status reports within thirty (30) 
days of request. 

n. Within 60 days after Project completion, provide the Certification of Completion, which 
is attached as Exhibit A, that it has complied with the requirements of 18.27.6 NMAC 
and this Agreement.  

o. Upon completion, maintain all the Public Entity’s facilities constructed or reconstructed 
under this Agreement. 

 
5.  Both Parties Agree: 

a. Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment 
belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity 
as directed by the Department. 

b. Unless otherwise indicated in a letter of authorization, the Project will not be incorporated 
into the State Highway System and the Department is not assuming maintenance 
responsibility or liability. 

c. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-78, Transportation Project Funds granted under 
this provision cannot be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under any 
other program.  

d. The requirements of 18.27.6 NMAC are incorporated by reference. 
e. The inability to properly complete and administer the Project may result in the Public 

Entity being denied future grant funding. 
 
6.  Term. 



Transportation Project Fund    Page 4 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all parties.  The effective date is the date 
when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement 
terminates on the earliest of the following dates: (a) Department receipt of the Certification of 
Completion or (b) June 30, 2028.  In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public 
Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60) 
days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment. Neither party 
shall have any obligation after said date except as stated in Sections 2e, 4l, 4n and 7. 
 
7.  Termination.  
If the Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department may 
terminate this Agreement by providing thirty (30) days written notice.  This Agreement may also 
be terminated pursuant to Section 15. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except 
as stated in Sections 2e, 4l, 4n and 7.  
 
8.  Third Party Beneficiary.  
It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or 
any member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the 
Agreement to maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to 
person(s), damage(s) to property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
9.  New Mexico Tort Claims Act.  
As between the Department and Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability 
incurred as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any 
liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of 
the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Section 41-4-1, et seq.  
 
10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.  
The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a 
general liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence.  The 
Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor’s policy 
and a certificate of insurance must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage 
provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.  
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and 
subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any 
liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court 
costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act, 
error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the 
performance of the Project.  
 
11. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the 
parties concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have 
been merged into this written Agreement. No prior Agreement or understandings, verbal or 



Transportation Project Fund    Page 5 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

otherwise, of the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this 
Agreement. 
 
12. Terms of this Agreement.  
The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform 
with and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances. 
 
13.  Legal Compliance. 
The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws, 
regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws 
governing civil right, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issue, workplace safety, 
employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The 
Public Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in each contract and subcontract at 
all tiers. 
 
14. Equal Opportunity Compliance. 
The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive 
orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. 
In accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor 
of the State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on 
the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be 
excluded from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this 
Agreement. If the parties are found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the 
term of this Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies. 
 
15. Appropriations and Authorizations. 
The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations 
being made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico for 
performance of the Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the 
Public Entity and the Legislature this Agreement will terminate upon written notice being given 
by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed to 
expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and 
approved for expenditure. 
 
16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements. 
There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements relating to this Agreement. 
The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum 
of five (5) years after completion of the Project.  The Public Entity shall furnish the Department 
and State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement.  If an audit 
finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the 
Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) days of written 
notification.  If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted 
accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be 
reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days. 
 
17. Severability. 



Transportation Project Fund    Page 6 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 
 
18. Applicable Law. 
The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its 
choice of law provisions.  Venue is proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in 
accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(G). 
 
19. Amendment. 
This Agreement may be amended by an instrument in writing executed by the parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Transportation Project Fund    Page 7 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s 
signature.  
 
 
NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
 
 
By:_____________________________  Date: _______________ 

Cabinet Secretary or Designee 
 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s 
Office of General Counsel 
 
 
By:_______________________________  Date: _________________ 
 Assistant General Counsel 
 
 
Sierra County 
 
By:_______________________________  Date: _________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________ 
  
Title: _____________________________ 
 
 

 
 



Transportation Project Fund    Page 8 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF PROJECT COMPLETION 

 

Public Entity:  

Control No. LP10080 

 

I, ____________________________, in my capacity as ___________________________ of 

______________________________ certify in regard to Control No. LP10080: 

1. That the Public Entity has complied with the terms and conditions of the requirements under 

this Agreement and 18.27.6 NMAC. 

2. That all work in was performed in accordance with the Agreement. 

3. That the total Project cost of ____________________, with New Mexico Department of 

Transportation 95% share of ____________________ and the Public Entity share of 

____________________ is accurate, legitimate, and appropriate for the Project. 

4. That the Project was completed on _________ of _____________, 20_____ 

 

In Witness Whereof, __________________________________________ in his/her 

capacity as ___________________________ of ________________________  

certify that the matters stated above are true to his/her knowledge and belief. 

 

Sierra County 

By: ____________________________________________ Date: _______________ 

Title: __________________________________________  Date:  _______________ 

 

ATTEST: 

By: ____________________________________________ Date: _______________ 

       Public Entity Clerk 

 

When completed, send Certification of Project Completion to the District Coordinator, New 

Mexico Department of Transportation.  



Transportation Project Fund    Page 9 of 9   FY2026 LP10080 
Rev 9/2019 

EXHIBIT B 

RESOLUTION 

Sierra County 
 

PARTICIPATION IN TRANSPORTATION PROJECT FUND PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY 
NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Sierra County and the New Mexico Department of Transportation have entered 
into a grant agreement under the Transportation Fund Program for a local road project. 
 
 WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be $3,675,000 to be funded in proportional share by 
the parties hereto as follows: 
 

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share shall be 95% or $3,491,250.00 
 

and 
 
b. Sierra County’s proportional matching share shall be 5% or $183,750.00 
 

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS $3,675,000.00 
 

The Sierra County  shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of $3,675,000.00. 
 

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that Sierra County determines, resolves, and 
orders as follows: 

 
That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing. 

 
The agreement terminates on June 30, 2028 and the Sierra County incorporates all the 

agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter 
hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written 
agreement. 

 
Now therefore, be it resolved by the Sierra County to enter into Cooperative Agreement for 

Project Control Number LP10080 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for the TPF 
Program for year 2026 for Ph 2 Sugar Sand Bridge-Construction, Construction Management, Inspection, 
and Testing for replacement of the existing single-lane bridge #6680 (known as Sugar Sand Bridge) over 
the Rio Grande with a new two-lane bridge, and associated bridge approach modifications.- within the 
control of the Sierra County in New Mexico. 

 
(Appropriate Signatures below (Council, Commission, School Board, Tribe, Pueblo, Nation, etc.) 
 

   
(PRINTED NAME, POSITION)    DATE 

  
           

   
(PRINTED NAME, POSITION)    DATE 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

1 

AMENDED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
OPIOID REMEDIATION COLLABORATIVE 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Counties of Catron (“Catron”), 
Cibola (“Cibola”), Guadalupe (“Guadalupe”), Hidalgo (“Hidalgo”), Sierra (“Sierra”), 
Socorro (“Socorro”), and Valencia (“Valencia”), referred to collectively as the 
(“Counties”) or (“Participating Entities”). 
 
ARTICLE I.   RECITALS  

WHEREAS, the Counties are bodies corporate and politic existing by and under the 
Constitution and Laws of the State of New Mexico; and, 

WHEREAS, this agreement is made under the authority of the Joint Powers Agreement 
Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 11-1-1 et seq. (“Joint Powers Act”), 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995) provides that Counties have the power 
to, “provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the 
morals, order, comfort and convenience of any county or its inhabitants”; and, 

WHEREAS, both the State of New Mexico and the Counties were signatories to a New 
Mexico Opioid Allocation Agreement, in the amount of $195,547,175.00, which proceeds 
must be utilized to remediate the opioid epidemic; and, 

WHEREAS, under the agreement, the State of New Mexico will receive 45% of the opioid 
allocation, and the Counties and Municipalities will share in 55% of the opioid litigation 
proceeds; and, 

WHEREAS, the estimated year one distribution will be $17,439.42 to Catron County, 
$119,198.58 to Cibola County, $28848.91 to Guadalupe County, $30,333.52 to Hidalgo 
County, $159,100.56 to Sierra County, $113,641.08 to Socorro County, and $427,768.21 
to Valencia County; and, 

WHEREAS, the Counties have commenced discussions to explore the feasibility of 
pooling their resources, and to explore participation with the State and other counties and 
municipalities to support the development of a treatment system to help those suffering 
from opioid use disorder within New Mexico; and, 

WHEREAS, the Counties collectively lack the in-house expertise to develop of 
sustainable treatment system; and, 

WHEREAS, Catron County, Cibola County, Guadalupe County, Hidalgo County, Sierra 
County, Socorro County, and Valencia County (the “Counties”) entered into a Joint Powers 
Agreement establishing the Opioid Remediation Collaborative (“ORC”); 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

2 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the ORC is to pool resources from opioid litigation recoveries 
to develop and implement sustainable, best-practice opioid remediation strategies for the 
benefit of the people of New Mexico; 

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that requiring each member’s governing body to 
amend the JPA to admit new entities is unduly burdensome and inhibits regional 
cooperation; 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to provide a clear mechanism by which additional eligible 
entities may become members of the ORC by action of the ORC Board, provided that they 
dedicate their opioid litigation recovery proceeds to the ORC; 

WHEREAS, the Parties further desire to provide a clear mechanism by which any 
participating entity may elect to withdraw from the ORC, while preserving the integrity of 
the collaborative’s pooled resources; 

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereby establish the Opioid Remediation Collaborative, 
as detailed herein, which Board will exercise the common power outlined below to develop 
and implement a sustainable, best practice, opioid treatment resource and/or program that 
will assist New Mexico with closing the addiction treatment gap for those suffering from 
opioid addiction. 

ARTICLE II.  COMMON POWER 

The parties share the power to “protect generally the property of its municipality and its 
inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and order” and, “provide for the safety, preserve the 
health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of 
… its inhabitants”. See NMSA 1978, § 3-18-1 (1972)  and  NMSA 1978, § 4-37-1 (1995) 

ARTICLE III. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

3.1 Pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Powers Agreements Act, the parties agree 
that the “Opioid Remediation Collaborative” (ORC) shall be organized and empowered as 
set forth herein. 

3.2 The ORC will provide the services outlined herein to both the incorporated and 
unincorporated areas within the geographic area of the Participating Entities. 

3.3    To do all acts necessary and proper to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the following:  a.  work with the Participating Entities, States, 
and other stakeholders to develop and implement a sustainable, best practice, opioid 
treatment resource and/or program that will assist the participating entities in closing the 
addition treatment gap for those suffering with opioid addiction in those communities; b.  
identify opioid abatement strategies that can support existing services for sustainability 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

3 

purposes.; c. identify possible opportunities to fill addiction service gaps.; d. provide 
technical advisory assistance to the Participating Entities and the local providers as it 
relates to program implementation and sustainability; e. assist the Participating Entities 
with identifying a strong system of care infrastructure to build on reoccurring abatement 
strategies that will be implemented annually, based on funding opportunities; f. engaging 
the respective legislative delegations of the participating communities to secure additional 
support and funding for the regional opioid treatment system; g. identify and seek resources 
and financial commitments to fund the efforts outlined above; h. establish, maintain, and 
administer the opioid remediation fund, which fund shall be held in a separate line item of 
the Valencia County budget, which fund shall consist of the opioid litigation proceeds from 
each of the participating entities, federal monies, legislative appropriations, public and 
private grants, gifts and private donations received for the purpose of received for the 
purpose of developing and implementing a system of sustainable regional opioid 
remediation; i. accept and spend federal monies, public and private grants, gifts, 
contributions, and devises to assist in carrying out the purposes of this article.  These 
monies do not revert to the parties’ respective general funds at the end of a fiscal year, but 
shall carry-over to the next fiscal year to be used only for such purposes as outlined herein. 

ARTICLE IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
4.1  The activities of the ORC shall be governed by a Board consisting of one 
representative appointed by each of the participating entities. The Chair of the ORC Board 
shall have the same voting rights as any other member of the Board. Upon request or 
invitation, and pursuant to an affirmative vote, additional parties may be added as 
participating entities to the Opioid Remediation Collaborative. Such participating entities 
shall be permitted to appoint a representative to the ORC Board. A representative of the 
New Mexico Department of Health shall serve as ex-officio member of the ORC Board. 
Ex-officio members shall have no voting powers, and their presence does not bear on the 
existence of a quorum. 

4.2  The powers and duties of the Board shall be to: (a) engage such 
Contractors/Consultants required to perform those duties outlined in Section 3.3 of this 
Joint Powers Agreement. (b) elect one (1) of its members as Chairperson and one (1) Vice 
Chairperson.  (c) hold meetings to receive reports and provide its consultants with guidance 
and direction in compliance with the “Opens Meeting Act”;  (d) determine the time and 
place of meetings and give public notice thereof;  (e) Assure for proper management and 
control of the finances and property of ORC;  (f) Establish and adopt bylaws and internal 
rules and regulations and policies as it deems necessary to conduct the affairs of ORC, 
including but not limited to personnel matters;  (g) Submit periodic certified financial 
statements detailing revenues received from all sources, expenditures, and obligations 
incurred and unpaid to the parties to this Agreement;  (h) Submit a quarterly activity report 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

4 

to the parties; (i) Acquire and approve all appropriate insurance contracts for adequate 
coverage that will protect the interests of the ORC and the parties to this Agreement, 
including but not limited to worker’s compensation, general liability, unemployment 
compensation, and property damage. Liability insurance policies shall be reviewed on a 
regular basis and coverage will be increased when necessary.  (j) Approve and execute all 
ORC contracts, public or private;  (k) Acquire and hold all personal or real property of 
ORC or of the parties. 

4.3  Any county, municipality, or other eligible public entity within the State of New 
Mexico that is entitled to receive opioid litigation recovery proceeds may request to join 
the ORC by submitting a written request to the ORC Board.   The ORC Board may approve 
the admission of such entity as a new participating entity upon an affirmative vote of a 
majority of a quorum of the Board.   As a condition of admission, the requesting entity 
shall dedicate its opioid litigation recovery proceeds to the ORC.  Upon approval, the new 
participating entity shall immediately be entitled to appoint one representative to the ORC 
Board, with full voting rights.  Admission of new members under this Section shall not 
require further amendment of this JPA or approval of the governing bodies of the existing 
Parties. 

ARTICLE V.  FINANCES AND BUDGETING 
 
5.1 The County of Valencia shall act as the fiscal agent for the ORC and shall collect 
all revenues accruing to and make all disbursements for the ORC, including providing a 
monthly expense and revenue report and the Treasurer will provide a Treasurer’s report. 

5.2 No participating entity is responsible for the provision of any of its general funds 
in support of this Agreement.  The operation of the ORC is contingent upon receipt of 
opioid litigation proceeds, legislative appropriations, public and private grants, gifts and 
private donations received for the purpose of developing and implementing a sustainable, 
best practice, opioid treatment resource and/or program that will assist New Mexico with 
closing the addiction treatment gap for those suffering from opioid addiction. 

5.3    Operating funds of the ORC shall be held in one or more separate accounts and shall 
not be commingled with the funds of any of the parties to this agreement, and shall only be 
utilized as provided herein. 

5.4 The ORC may invest its funds only in accordance with any applicable laws of the 
State which govern the investment of public funds. 

5.5 No Party to this agreement shall have any liability to pay for any debt or other 
obligation incurred by the ORC unless there is a specific written agreement to do so 
accompanied by an appropriation approved with the requisite formalities. 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

5 

5.6 The ORC Board shall be strictly accountable and responsible for the proper 
expenditure of all public funds. 

5.7 The ORC shall use, funds provided pursuant to this JPA solely for the uses set forth 
herein. 

5.8 The terms of the Bateman Act, being Sections 6-6-11 (1968), applies to this 
Agreement. The Act supersedes any conflicting provision of the Agreement. 

5.9 Expenditures of the ORC are subject to the provisions of the New Mexico 
Procurement Code, being NMSA 1978, Sections 13-1-28 et seq. (1984, as amended 
through 2021), and violation thereof may subject the responsible party to civil and or 
criminal penalties. 

5.10   The fiscal agent shall not allow any department of the fiscal agent to charge against 
any account unless the ORC submits a signed invoice and or supporting documentation, 
consistent with the policies and procedures established by the ORC Board, and the County 
of Valencia Procurement Code. 

5.11   The fiscal agent shall be responsible for providing a monthly expense and revenue 
report to ORC and for providing the report to the ORC Board for review and approval. 

5.12    The fiscal agent shall strictly account for receipts and disbursements made pursuant 
to this JPA, in accordance with the County of Valencia Procurement Code and all other 
applicable laws and regulations. 

5.13 Each participating entity shall contribute to the ORC the full amount of its opioid 
litigation recovery proceeds, including present and future distributions, unless otherwise 
prohibited by law. Such contributions shall be deposited into the opioid remediation fund 
maintained by the fiscal agent and shall be used exclusively for the purposes set forth in 
this Agreement. Failure of a participating entity to make its required contribution shall 
constitute grounds for suspension or termination of membership by action of the ORC 
Board, after notice and an opportunity to cure. 

ARTICLE VI. BOOKS /RECORDS 

6.1 The ORC shall maintain adequate and correct accounts of its funds, properties and 
business transactions, said accounts shall be open to inspection at any reasonable time by 
the parties hereto, their accountants or their agents.  The ORC shall cause to be conducted 
an annual audit, which audit shall be conducted by an independent certified public 
accountant, approved by the State auditor.  The ORC shall submit a copy of said audit to 
each of the parties. 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

6 

6.2 Within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year, the ORC shall prepare and present 
to the parties a comprehensive annual report of the ORC's activities and finances during 
the preceding year.  The ORC shall also render to the parties hereto, at reasonable intervals 
and within a reasonable time period, such reports and accounting as the parties hereto may 
from time to time request. 

6.3 The ORC shall prepare and present such other reports as may be required by law, 
regulation or contract to any authorized governmental agency. 

 

ARTICLE VII. OTHER PROVISIONS 

7.1 This JPA and the rights of the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the Laws of the State of New Mexico. 

7.2 This JPA incorporates all of the agreements and understandings between the parties 
hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such agreements and understandings 
have been merged into this written JPA.  No prior agreements or understandings, verbal or 
otherwise, of the parties or their agents are valid or enforceable unless embodied in this 
JPA. 

ARTICLE VIII. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

8.1 The term of this Agreement shall be perpetual, unless terminated as herein provided.  

8.2 Upon termination of this Agreement by the parties to this Agreement, the powers 
granted to the ORC under this Agreement shall continue to the extent necessary to make 
an effective disposition of the property. Any property acquired shall be distributed in 
proportion to the contributions of the parties. 

8.3 If any provision of this JPA, or the application of such provisions to any person or 
circumstances shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the remainder of this JPA, or the application of its provisions to persons or circumstances 
other than those to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby and the remainder 
of this JPA can be performed in substantial accordance with the original intent of the parties 
hereto. 

8.4 Pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Powers Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 11-1-1 et 
seq., all privileges and immunities from liability, exemptions from laws, ordinances, and 
rules, which apply to the activity of officers, agents, or employees of any signatory public 
agency when performing their respective functions within the territorial limits of their 
respective public agencies, shall apply to them to the same extent while engaged in the 
performance of any of their functions and duties under the provisions of the JPA. 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

7 

8.5  Any participating entity may elect to withdraw from the ORC by providing written 
notice to the ORC Board and to all other participating entities not less than six (6) months 
prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year. Withdrawal shall become effective at the 
beginning of the fiscal year following the expiration of such notice period. Upon 
withdrawal, the entity shall forfeit any further rights to participate in the ORC or to direct 
the expenditure of opioid litigation recovery proceeds already committed to the ORC.  Any 
property or funds contributed by the withdrawing entity shall remain with the ORC and be 
used for the purposes of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS 

9.1     This agreement may be amended by the parties from time to time, but any amendment 
shall be in writing, executed by all of the parties thereto, and approved by the Department 
of Finance and Administration. 

ARTICLE X.  LIABILITY PROVISION 

10.1    Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party’s 
acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement.  Any liability incurred as a result of 
this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims 
Act. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 11-1-5 (1961), the ORC is expressly declared to be 
a separate and independent legal entity from each of the public bodies that comprise this 
JPA. Accordingly, the members of the ORC Board, its officers, and the public entity 
members of the JPA shall not be held personally or institutionally liable for any acts 
performed or omitted in good faith by the ORC in the exercise of its powers and duties 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XI.     INSURANCE 

11.1   The ORC shall obtain insurance to cover any suit which may be brought against it 
and its officers and employees. All liability insurance policies shall list all the participating 
counties as additional insureds.  The liability shall contain minimum limits amounts of 
$1,000,000.00 per person and $2,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

ARTICLE XII. CONTACT AND NOTICES 

The parties may, from time to time, change their contact person and shall provide prompt 
notice of such change to the other parties.   Any notice required under this JPA shall be 
deemed given and delivered to, and received by, the receiving party three (3) days after 
deposit in the U.S. mail, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed 
to the receiving party at the mailing address set forth below: 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

8 

Catron County 
 
County Manager 
100 Main Street 
Reserve, NM 87830 
 
Cibola County 
 
County Manager 
700 E. Roosevelt Street 
Grants, NM 87020 
 
 
 
Guadalupe County 
 
County Manager 
130 S. 4th Street 
Santa Rosa, NM 88435 
 
 
Hidalgo County 
 
County Manager 
305 Pyramid Street 
Lordsburg, NM 88045 
 
Socorro County 
 
County Manager 
PO Box I 
Socorro, NM 87801 
 
Sierra County 
 
County Manager 
1712 N. Date 
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
 
Valencia County 
 
County Manager 
PO Box 1119 
Los Lunas, NM 87030 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement which becomes 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

9 

effective as of the date of approval by the Department of Finance and Administration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

10 

 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF CATRON COUNTY 
 
__________________________ 
Buster Floyd Green 
Commissioner, District I 
 
__________________________ 
Audrey H. McQueen 
Commissioner, District II      
 
___________________________     
Haydn Forward      
Commissioner, District III     

 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
 
___________________________  
Sherry M. Perez, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

11 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE COUNTY OF CIBOLA 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Christine Lowery, Chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Ralph Lucero, 1st Vice-Commissioner 
 
_______________________________________ 
Ray Carpenter, 2nd Vice-Chair  
 
________________________________________ 
Georga Routzen-Sanchez, Commissioner 
 
________________________________________ 
Joseph Windhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Natalie Grine 
Cibola County Clerk 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

12 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF GUADALUPE COUNTY 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Dr. Randal Brown, Chair 

__________________________________ 
Albert Campos, Jr., Vice-Chair 

__________________________________                     
Ricky Chavez, Commissioner 

 
ATTEST: 
 

__________________________________ 
Robert E. Serrano III, County Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

13 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
OF HIDALGO COUNTY 
 

 
______________________________  
Art Malott, Chairman      

 
 

______________________________                        
Joel Edwards, Vice-Chair    
 
 
______________________________                     
Kelly Peterson, Commissioner  

 
 

ATTEST:      
 

 
______________________________ 
Alyssa Esquivel, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

14 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE COUNTY OF SOCORRO 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Joe Gonzales, Chair      Craig D. Secatero, Vice-Chair    
District V      District II 
 
   
__________________________   __________________________ 
John Aguilar, Member    Danny Monette, Member 
District III      District IV 
 
       

_______________________________ 
    Phillip Montoya 
    District V 
 
 
ATTEST BY:   
 
 
__________________________________    __________________ 
Michelle Paz, County Clerk      Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

15 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS    
OF THE COUNTY OF SIERRA    
 
 
______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Jim Paxon, Vice- Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
 
ATTEST BY:   
 
______________________________________  ________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk      Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

16 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE COUNTY OF VALENCIA 
 
 
_____________________________        _______________________________ 
Gerard Saiz, Chair    Troy Richardson, Vice-Chair 
District I     Commissioner, District II 
     
 
_____________________________        _______________________________ 
Morris Sparkman    Joseph Bizzell 
Commissioner, District III   Commissioner, District IV 
 
   

 _____________________________ 
       Dante Berry                                        

 Commissioner, District V 
 
Attest:      
 
_____________________________    ______________________ 
Michael Milam, County Clerk      Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Opioid Remediation Collaborative 
 

17 

 
APPROVED 
 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Cabinet Secretary 
 
Date:  __________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NEW MEXICO
SIERRA COUNState of New Mexico

Cou,tt! Clerk
575-89,1-28, t

575-E91-3524

575-894-2589

575-740-4900

County of Sierua

575-894-62 t 5

575-891-62t5

Trais Duy

575-891-62t 5
l712 N. Date, Suite D

Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
Cou,'tr She ff
575-894-9t 50Amber faughtr, County lllanager

5 7 5-894-62 I 5 t'oice 5 7 5-891-9 548 fL\

September l6th,2025

Dear Commissioners,

The review of the Poverty Creek Fire Department RFP process has been completed, and the
determination is to move forward with RY Construction as the contractor. The procurement
process was conducted in accordance with Sierra County and State requirements. The contract
amount is 9239,407 .9'l plus applicable gross receipts tax (GRT).

The contract documents are being finalized. ln order to avoid delay, authorization is requested
for the County Manager to sign the contract with RY Construction once it is complete.

I am requesting the County Comrnission to review this item and authorize the County Manager
to execute the contract with RY Construction once it is finalized. Thank you.

Project: Poverty Creek Fire Department
Contractor: RY Construction
Total Project Cost: $239,407.91 + GRT

Thank you,

aughnb
ty Manager

RE: RY Construction - Poverty Creek Firc Department



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
APPROVAL OF UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASE 

 
Pursuant to the Sierra County Procurement Code section 2.45 relating to unauthorized 

purchases, the county is requesting commission approval for the following unauthorized 
purchase: 
 

Date  - May 19, 2025 
Purchase - Rescue Tactics and Training 
Invoice#  - 1508 and 1511 
Total Cost  - $8,076.88 
G/L#   - 603-81-2999 

 Purchaser  - Brian Hamilton/ Travis Atwell 
 

2.45 UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASES  
…  All unauthorized purchases shall be taken to the Board of County 
Commissioners which, at its discretion, may approve an unauthorized 
purchase for payment.  Payment can only be made on an unauthorized 
purchase after it has been reviewed and approved pursuant to this section. 

 
Please see the attached document for additional information relating to the purchase, as 

well as the steps taken by the requesting department to ensure compliance with the procurement 
code in the future. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this 16th day of September 2025.  

 

 

 

 

 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

Thomas Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

 

 
 
 

Travis Day,   
 Commission Chair 

575-894-6215 

James E. Paxon, 
Commission Vice-Chair 

575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215  

Joshua Baker 
Sheriff 

575-894-9150 

Amber Vaughn 
County Manager 

575-894-6215 
1712 N Date St. Suite D 

Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Travis Day, Commissioner Chair 

 

______________________________________ 

James E. Paxon, Vice- Chair 

 

______________________________________ 

Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 

Amy Whitehead 
Sierra County Clerk 
 

 

 



R6scu€ Tactiqg and Training LLc
24 Silver Ln

Estancia. NM 87016
+ 150541 41381

rescue@rescuetnt.com
www.RescueTnT.com

BILL TO

Director EM EMS Brian

Hamilton

Sierra Vista Hospital and

Clinics
800 East gth Avenue
Truth or Consequences, NM

87901 USA

|NVO|CE # 1s08

DATE 05/1 9/2025
DUE DATE 0511912025

TERMS Due on receipt

SHIP DATE

06/16/2025
SHIP VIA
G rou nd

ACTIVITY

NRS:NRS Rapid Rescuer
PFD RED
Built to the standards ol
rescue professionals, the
NBS Rapid Rescuer PFD
goes beyond a flotation
device. With advanced
Ieatures, the Rapid
Rescuer becomes a
wearable tool during an
emergency.

NRS:NRS Havoc Lvery
Helmet RED
The NRS Havoc Helmet is
your one-size-lits-most
solution to whitewater
salety. Our DialFit system
lets you quickly and easily
adjust the tit to
accommodate almost any
head size.

NRS:NRS ATB Wotsho€s
A boot designed for all
terrains, the NRS ATB
Wetshoe combines a
heavy-duty sole Ior
maximum traction with the
warmth and cushion of
neoprene construction.

RATE

264.95 794.85

DATE

01t27 t2025

OTY

01127 t2025

01127 /2025

3

52.95

3 7 4.95

158.85

INVOICE

7

\7

IN STATE
X

224.85



OATE

41t27t2025

01/27 /2025

01 127 /2025

01/27 /2025

ACTIVIry

From quick side-hikes to
grueling portages, the ATB
Wetshoe provides all-day
comlort and protection in
and out of the boat-

NRS:NRS Tactlcal Glovos
With the perfect
combination ot durability,
warmth and paddle leel,
NRS Tactical GIoves live
up to the demands ol the
task at hand, whether Ior
rescue work or tor play.

NRS:Fox 40 Edk CMG
Whisde
The Fox 40@ EpikrM has an
integrated black over-
molded Cushioned Mouth
Grip (CMG@).
The pealess, three-
chamber design works
great, even when wet.
The Epik is easy to blow
and delivers 1 15 decibels
ol sound which can be
heard up to one mile away.

Technical Rescue
Gear47300.G)
Prolessional responders
and recreational boaters
love the extra length and
practical features of the
Pilot Knife. Purpose-built lor
river rescue but so versatile
that you'll want one lor your
PFD, the car, emergency
medical kit, and the garage

NRS:NRS Standerd Resqre
Throw Bag
Whitewater salety is a
serious matter. The NRS
Standard Rescue Throw
Bag is an excellent tool for
protecting you and your
buddies in swiftwater
emergency situations.

NRS:NRS Rescue Wobuit
With features designed
specifically lor rescue
crews, the NRS Rescue
Wetsuit provides our
highest level of insulation,
while retaining the mobility
you need to do your work.

RATE

3 59.95

3

3 49.95

3 69.95

3 319.95

OTY AMOUNT

179.85

29.85

149.85

209.85

959.85

01t2712025

9.95



0112712025 NRS:NRS Purest Mesh
Duffel Bag 90L
The go-to gear bag for
boaters. The Purest Mesh
Duffel's ripstop nylon lower
and mesh upper are built to
air out river funk yet
withstand the stress of life
on the go or in the wild. A
cylindrical main
compartment makes
packing easy while the end
pocket separates wet trom
dry, giving the impression
of being well-organized.

3 99.95

SUBTOTAL
DISCOUNT 1O%

TAX
TOTAL
BALANCE DUE

299.85

3,007.65
-300.77

0.00
2,706.88

$2,706.88



Rescuo Tactics and Training LLC

24 Silver Ln

Estancia. NM 87016
+15054141381

rescue@rescuetnt.com
www.RescueTnT.com

INVOICE
BILL TO

Director EM EMS Brian

Hamilton

Sierra Vista Hospital and

Clinics
800 East gth Avenue
Truth or Consequences, NM

87901 USA

lNvolcE# 1511

DATE 06/18/2025
DUE DATE O6NA/2025

TERMS Due on receipt

SHIP DATE

0611612025

SHIP VIA
Field Delivery

ACTIVITY

Wat€r Rescuo
Training :Surlace Wator
Roscuo Training and Switt
Water Rescu€ Training
OPERATIONS LEVEL
Surface ware rescue
training including swift
water rescue training.
Meets NFPA 1006 and
NFPA 2500.

Wat€r Rescue
Tralnlng:Surfac6 Wat€r
Rescue Training and Srvlft
Wat€r Roscu€ Training -
TECHNICIAN Level
Surface ware rescue
training including swift
water rescue training.
Meets NFPA 1006 and
NFPA 2500.

3

BATE

795.00

3 995.00

AMOUNT

2,385.00

2,985.00

5,370.00
0.00

5,370.00

IN STATE
X

DATE

01 t27 t2025

QTY

01t27 t2025

SUBTOTAL
TAX
TOTAL
BALANCE DUE $5,370.00

7
\"ilx

7







 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No.  2025-73 
 

FY26 – BUDGET ADJUSTMENT RESOLUTION 
 
Whereas, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners, meeting in regular public session on 
September 16th, 2025, deems it necessary to amend the said line items in the FY 2025-2026 
budget; 
 
Whereas, a transfer in Fund 502 – Legislative Appropriations must be made to adjust for 
reimbursements received and the available budget in Fund 418  - NMDOT FY2024-2025 (SB) 
needs to be increased to match the revenue received;   
 
Therefore, Be lt Resolved, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby move to 
implement the transfer in the FY 2025-2026 Budget as described below: 
 
Expense: 

ACCOUNT 
LINE: DESCRIPTION 

CURRENT 
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT 

NEW 
BALANCE  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

418-53-2182 NMDOT FY2024-2025 SB $144,063 $16,088 $160,151 Amend to actuals 
 
Transfer: 

ACCOUNT 
LINE: DESCRIPTION 

CURRENT 
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT 

NEW 
BALANCE  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

502-0 -1971 TO OTHER FUNDS $0 $865,500 $865,500 

Reduce fund funds transferred in 
Fund 502 from 401 to true fund 
balance 

401-0 -1970 TRANSFER $0 $865,500 $865,500 Transfer from Fund 502  
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
 
 
 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

 



 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
ATTEST:    TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
    ____________________________ 
    HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________ 
AMY WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK  JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 



 1 

 
 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-74 
 

ORDERING THE IMPOSITION OF THE 2025 PROPERTY TAX RATES  
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission met upon notice of a duly noticed regular County 
Commission Meeting on September 16, 2025, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration 
Building, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 (1884) the powers of a county as a body 
politic and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and, 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-34 (1973) provides that upon receipt of the property tax 
rate-setting order from the Department of Finance and Administration, each Board of County 
Commissioners shall issue its written order imposing the tax at the rates set on the net taxable 
value of property allocated to the appropriate governmental units, and that a copy of this order 
shall be delivered immediately to the County Assessor; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Finance and Administration has issued its Certificate of Tax Rates 
for Tax Year 2025 certifying the property tax rates to be imposed upon the net taxable value of 
property within Sierra County; and 

WHEREAS, the imposition of property tax rates pursuant to Section 7-38-34 and as reflected in 
the 2025 Certificate of Tax Rates are hereby certified as the tax rates for the governmental units 
sharing in the tax, in accordance with the New Mexico Property Tax Code; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Board of County 
Commissioners of Sierra County hereby approves and implements the 2025 Certificate of Tax 
Rates, attached hereto and incorporated herein, as required by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 16th day of September 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Chair 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2025 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2025-09-02 14:32:37

Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills
Sierra County
Tax Year 2025

OVERALL COUNTY NET TAXABLE VALUE: $375,435,590

Property Classification Residential Non-Residential Residential Non-Residential Residential Non-Residential

Tax District 6 EB R 6 EB NR 6 IN R 6 IN NR 6 OUT R 6 OUT NR

Municipality Elephant Butte (City) Elephant Butte (City) Truth or Consequences
(City)

Truth or Consequences
(City)

Public School District Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences

College District

Taxable Value 58,413,178 20,192,398 81,177,878 42,326,052 95,060,949 71,646,741

Mill Levies for State, County, Municipality, and School District

State Debt Service 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360

Total State 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360 1.360

County Operational 10.340 11.850 10.340 11.850 10.340 11.850

Total County 10.340 11.850 10.340 11.850 10.340 11.850

Municipal Debt Service - - 3.500 3.500 - -

Municipal Operational 4.116 4.119 1.469 2.225 - -

Total Municipal 4.116 4.119 4.969 5.725 0.000 0.000

School District Operational 0.484 0.500 0.484 0.500 0.484 0.500

School District Debt Service 5.650 5.650 5.650 5.650 5.650 5.650

School Capital Improvement (Senate Bill 9 Levy) 1.936 2.000 1.936 2.000 1.936 2.000

Total School District 8.070 8.150 8.070 8.150 8.070 8.150

Total State, County, Municipal and School
District

23.886 25.479 24.739 27.085 19.770 21.360

                               1 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2025 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2025-09-02 14:32:37

Tax District 6 EB R 6 EB NR 6 IN R 6 IN NR 6 OUT R 6 OUT NR

Mill Levies for College and Hospital

Total Higher Education 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Sierra County Hospital

          Hospital Operational 1.938 2.000 1.938 2.000 1.938 2.000

Total Hospital 1.938 2.000 1.938 2.000 1.938 2.000

Total College and Hospital 1.938 2.000 1.938 2.000 1.938 2.000

Grand Total State, County, Municipal, Public
School, College, Hospital

25.824 27.479 26.677 29.085 21.708 23.360

Mill Levies for Other Taxing Entities

Caballo SWCD

          Operational (Not Yield Controlled) - - - - 1.000 1.000

Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District

          Operational (Not Yield Controlled) 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500

Sierra Flood Control

          Operational 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500

Sierra SWCD

          Operational (Not Yield Controlled) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Underwood Watershed

          Operational - - - - 4.680 5.000

Total Other 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 8.680 9.000

Grand Total 28.824 30.479 29.677 32.085 30.388 32.360

                               2 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2025 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2025-09-02 14:32:37

Property Classification Residential Non-Residential

Tax District 6W IN R 6W IN NR

Municipality Williamsburg (Village) Williamsburg (Village)

Public School District Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences

College District

Taxable Value 5,194,714 1,423,680

Mill Levies for State, County, Municipality, and School District

State Debt Service 1.360 1.360

Total State 1.360 1.360

County Operational 10.340 11.850

Total County 10.340 11.850

Municipal Debt Service - -

Municipal Operational 1.649 2.225

Total Municipal 1.649 2.225

School District Operational 0.484 0.500

School District Debt Service 5.650 5.650

School Capital Improvement (Senate Bill 9 Levy) 1.936 2.000

Total School District 8.070 8.150

Total State, County, Municipal and School
District

21.419 23.585

                               3 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2025 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2025-09-02 14:32:37

Tax District 6W IN R 6W IN NR

Mill Levies for College and Hospital

Total Higher Education 0.000 0.000

Sierra County Hospital

          Hospital Operational 1.938 2.000

Total Hospital 1.938 2.000

Total College and Hospital 1.938 2.000

Grand Total State, County, Municipal, Public
School, College, Hospital

23.357 25.585

Mill Levies for Other Taxing Entities

Caballo SWCD

          Operational (Not Yield Controlled) - -

Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District

          Operational (Not Yield Controlled) 0.500 0.500

Sierra Flood Control

          Operational 1.500 1.500

Sierra SWCD

          Operational (Not Yield Controlled) 1.000 1.000

Underwood Watershed

          Operational - -

Total Other 3.000 3.000

Grand Total 26.357 28.585

                               4 / 5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2025 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2025-09-02 14:32:37

Livestock Mill Levies

Category Rate Applicable Tax Districts

Cattle Indemnity 8.888 6 IN,6 OUT,6W IN

Sheep/Goats/Swine/Alpaca 9.279 6 IN,6 OUT

Dairy Cattle 3.559 6 OUT

Bison/Camelids/Ratite 8.118 6 OUT

Horses/Asses/Mules 9.869 6 IN,6 OUT

Other Assessments

Category Taxing Entity Description

Footnotes

Tax District Classification Assessment Footnote

Amendments

Date Description

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

                               5 / 5

http://www.tcpdf.org


 1 

 
 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-75 
 
APPROVING ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION FOR THE SIERRA COUNTY ASSESSOR PURSUANT TO 

NMSA 1978, SECTION 4-39-4 AND THE FINAL ORDER ENTERED BY THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL 

DISTRICT COURT 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission met upon notice of a duly noticed regular County 
Commission Meeting on September 16, 2025, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration 
Building, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 (1884) the powers of a county as a body 
politic and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the New Mexico Legislature, through NMSA 1978, Sections 4-39-2 through 4-39-
5, authorized additional compensation for County Assessors who complete certification in 
property appraisal and property tax administration; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 4-39-4, as amended by SB 324 (2023), provides that County Assessors 
may receive incremental additional compensation upon completion of successive certification 
levels, in the following amounts: 
 
- Appraiser 1 – Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) annually; 
- Appraiser 2 – One Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,750.00) annually; 
- Appraiser 3 – Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) annually; 
- Appraiser 4 – Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($3,500.00) annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Seventh Judicial District Court entered its Final Order Regarding Mid-Term 
Appraisal Certification Incentives on August 19, 2025, in Cause No. D-728-CV-2024-00034, 
confirming that such compensation is cumulative, consistent with legislative intent, and does not 
violate Article IV, Section 27 of the New Mexico Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Assessor has satisfied the statutory requirements and currently 
holds the certifications qualifying for said compensation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County desires to approve the 
assessor’s additional compensation as provided in law and the Final Order. 



 2 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County, New Mexico, that: 
 
1. The Sierra County Assessor is authorized and approved to receive additional compensation 

for appraisal certifications pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-39-4, as amended by SB 324 
(2023). 

2. The appraisers and elected assessor working in the Office of the Assessor will be paid a base 
rate of an additional $______  ($750.00 maximum)  a year for holding an "Appraiser 1" 
certificate, an additional ______  ($1,750.00 maximum) a year for holding an "Appraiser 2" 
certificate, an additional _______ ($3,000.00 maximum)  a year for holding an "Appraiser 3" 
certificate, and an additional ________ ($3,500.00 maximum)  a year for holding an 
"Appraiser 4" certificate which will be an additional cumulative increment to their salary. 

3. The continued receipt of the additional incentive pay is subject to maintenance of the 
certification and the provision of proof of each certification to the County before receiving 
additional incentive pay. 

4. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall remain in effect 
unless amended or repealed by further action of the Board. 

 
APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 16th day of September 2025. 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Chair 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 

SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
ORDINANCE NO.  2025-005 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING THE SIERRA COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE ORDINANCE, ORDINANCE NO. 23-02, TO CLARIFY PROHIBITIONS 

AGAINST THE ACCUMULATION AND DISPOSAL OF REFUSE AND HOUSEHOLD 
WASTE, AND TO REMOVE REFERENCES TO TERMS NOT DEFINED IN THE 

SOLID WASTE ACT; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT. 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission has the responsibility to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens of Sierra County, New Mexico; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission desires to additionally prevent the spread of disease, prevent the 
creation of nuisances, conserve the natural resources and maintain the natural beauty of the 
County’s environment; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission desires to provide for the efficient, economical, and 
environmentally sound disposal and regulation of Solid Waste within the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners has determined that it is necessary to 
adopt the powers in NMSA 1978 Sections 4-56-1 through 4-56-3 (1971) for the storage, recycling, 
collection and disposal of solid waste; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners is delegated the authority pursuant to 
NMSA 1978, Section 4-56-1, et seq., to "establish and maintain, manage and supervise a system 
of storage, collection and disposal of all refuse"; and,  
 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-56-3 (E) (1971) provides that “[i]f the board of county 
commissioners has acted under this section to establish one or more sanitary landfill sites and is 
regulating the disposal of refuse in the county, it may establish, assess and collect fees from persons 
using the refuse disposal sites."; and,  
 
WHEREAS, 20.9.2.9 (B) NMAC states that “[t]he state, and each municipality, county, or 
cooperative association shall provide a means to dispose of solid waste generated within its 
respective jurisdiction that has been approved by the secretary [ ];” and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners finds that it is necessary to provide for 
the efficient and sanitary collection, recycling, transportation and disposal of solid waste, 



2 
 

construction and demolition debris; to control litter in Sierra County, and to protect the health, 
welfare and safety of the citizens of Sierra County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission has found and determined that control and regulation 
of the use of the County Solid Waste disposal methods is necessary for the protection of the public 
health and that it is necessary to conserve available solid waste disposal capacity as a public 
resource; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission has found and determined that Solid Waste 
Management and Disposal procedures as established and practiced to date in the County have 
proven economically unviable. 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners previously adopted Ordinance No. 23-
02, the Sierra County Solid Waste Ordinance, to regulate the collection, storage, and disposal of 
solid waste; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that clarification is needed to expressly prohibit the 
accumulation and disposal of refuse and household waste, and to remove references to terms not 
defined in state law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board intends by this Ordinance to amend and restate Ordinance No. 23-02, such 
that the Ordinance remains in full force as amended, and that this document serves as the integrated 
version for enforcement purposes; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT APPROVED, ADOPTED AND ORDAINED BY THE BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO THAT: 
 
Section I. Short Title.   
 
This Ordinance may be cited as the “Solid Waste Management Ordinance,” and shall be referred 
to herein as the “Ordinance.” 
 
Section II. Solid Waste Disposal Fee and Electronic Card System.   
 
A Solid Waste Disposal Fee and Electronic Card System is hereby established and imposed on all 
Solid Waste generated in Sierra County. 
 
Section III. Authority.   
 
This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to counties to provide for the safety 
and preserve the health of the residents of the county as set forth in Section 4-37-1 NMSA 1978; 
the authority provided in Sections 4-56-1 through 4-56-3 NMSA 1978, which authorizes the 
county to establish and maintain, manage and supervise a system of storage, collection and 
disposal of all refuse; and the authority provided in Sections 3-36-1 through 3-36-7 NMSA 1978, 
which enables the county to attach liens. 
 



3 
 

Section IV. Definitions.   
 
As used in this Ordinance: 
 

A. Clean Fill - broken concrete, brick, rock, stone, glass, reclaimed asphalt pavement, or 
uncontaminated soil generated from construction and demolition activities.  Reinforcement 
materials which are an integral part, such as rebar, are included.  Clean fill must be free of 
other solid waste or hazardous waste.  

B. Commercial Property Owner- the owner of property assessed by the Sierra County 
Assessor as commercial. 

C. Composting - the process by which biologic decomposition of organic solid waste is carried 
out under controlled conditions.  The process stabilizes the organic fraction into a material 
which can be easily and safely stored, handled and used in an environmentally acceptable 
manner.   

D. Construction & Demolition (C & D) Debris - material generally considered to be water 
insoluble and non-hazardous in nature, including, but not limited to, steel, glass, brick, 
concrete, asphalt roofing materials, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber from the 
construction or destruction of a structure and includes rocks, soil, tree remains, trees and 
other vegetative matter that normally results from land clearing.  If construction and 
demolition debris is mixed with any other type of solid waste, it loses its classification as 
construction and demolition debris.  Construction and demolition debris does not include 
liquids, including, but not limited to, waste paints, solvents, sealers, adhesives; asbestos or 
potentially hazardous materials.   

E. County Commission - the Sierra County Board of Commissioners, the duly constituted 
governing body of Sierra County. 

F. County Manager - the chief administrative assistant to the Sierra County Board of 
Commissioners. 

G. County Road Superintendent - the Sierra County employee is responsible for the 
administration of the Sierra County Solid Waste Program.  

H. County Transfer Station - a facility maintained and operated by the County, for the benefit 
of the citizens of Sierra County, which handles solid waste in large containers or vehicles 
for transfer to a State and Federally authorized landfill. NOTE:  locations of Transfer 
Stations may be changed from time to time as determined by the Board of Commissioners 
for Sierra County. 

I. Disposal Unit-means one cubic yard of Solid Waste.  
J. Franchise- the authorization granted by the County to a single person enabling the 

franchisee to operate a solid waste disposal business in the unincorporated area of the 
County. 

K. Garbage - includes all waste food, swill, carrion, slops and all waste from the preparation, 
cooking and consumption of food and from the handling, storage and sale of food products 
and the carcasses of animals. 

L. Household Waste- any solid waste including garbage and trash, derived from household 
including single and multiple residences, residential property with trailer hookups, hotels 
and motels, bunkhouses, ranger stations, crew quarters, campgrounds, picnic grounds, and 
day use recreation areas. 



4 
 

M. Hauler - any person transporting solid waste by whatever means for the purpose of 
disposing of the solid waste in a solid waste facility, except that the term does not include 
an individual transporting solid waste generated on or from his residential premises for the 
purpose of disposing of it in a solid waste facility.   

N. Property Owner or Owner – the person or persons identified as the owner of real property, 
as described on a real property deed or as listed as the owner of record in the Assessor’s 
Office, whether residing on said property or not, the property being located within Sierra 
County and outside the corporate boundaries of the municipalities of any incorporated 
municipality within the County.   

O. Person - any individual, partnership, company, corporation, firm, association, trust, estate, 
state and federal agency, institution, county, city, town village, or municipality or other 
legal entity, however organized.  

P. Premises - a structure, whether designed for residential or commercial use, located on any 
real property within Sierra County and outside the corporate limits of any municipality 
within the County. 

Q. Resident-an individual identified as residing within the boundaries of Sierra County. 
R. Residential Property Owner- the owner of property assessed by the Sierra County Assessor 

as residential.  
S. Responsible Party- the owner of any premises, whether vacant, improved or unimproved, 

used primarily for either a private residence or for a business purpose, who is responsible 
for collection and/or disposal of solid waste on that premises. 

T. Refuse - includes garbage and rubbish. 
U. Rubbish - includes all junked parts or bodies of automobiles, tires, waste paper, paper 

cartons, tree branches, yard trimmings, discarded furniture, tin cans, dirt, ashes, bottles and 
all other unwholesome material of every kind not included as garbage. 

V. Solid Waste - means any garbage, refuse, sludge from a waste treatment plant, water supply 
treatment plant or air pollution control facility and other discarded material, including 
solid, liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting from industrial, 
commercial, mining and agricultural operations and from community activities. “Solid 
waste” does not include:  
1. drilling fluids, produced waters and other non-domestic wastes associated with the 

exploration, development or production, transportation, storage, treatment or 
refinement of crude oil, natural gas, carbon dioxide gas or geothermal energy;  

2. fly ash waste, bottom ash waste, slag waste and flue gas emission control waste 
generated primarily from the combustion of coal or other fossil fuels and wastes 
produced in conjunction with the combustion of fossil fuels that are necessarily 
associated with the production of energy and that traditionally have been and actually 
are mixed with and are disposed of or treated at the same time with fly ash, bottom ash, 
boiler slag or flue gas emission control wastes from coal combustion;  

3. waste from the extraction, beneficiation and processing of ores and minerals, including 
phosphate rock and overburden from the mining of uranium ore, coal, copper, 
molybdenum and other ores and minerals;  

4. agricultural waste, including, but not limited to, manures and crop residues returned to 
the soil as fertilizer or soil conditioner; 

5. cement kiln dust waste;  
6. sand and gravel;  



5 
 

7. solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage or solid or dissolved materials in 
irrigation return flows or industrial discharges that are point sources subject to permits 
under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. Section 1342 
or source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act 
of 1954, 42 U.S.C. Section 2011 et seq.;  

8. densified-refuse-derived fuel; or  
9. any material regulated by Subtitle C of the federal Resource Conservation and 

Recovery Act of 1976, substances regulated by the federal Toxic Substances Control 
Act or low-level radioactive waste;  

 
W. Solid Waste Electronic Card- means an electronic card on which a dollar value for the 

disposal solid waste has been loaded.  The electronic card will be debited per established 
disposal fee schedule when the solid waste is delivered to, measured and accepted by any 
convenience center in Sierra County. 

X. Solid Waste Disposal Fee- means fee charged by Sierra County or Solid Waste Contractor 
per the solid waste disposal fee schedule for the disposal of solid waste in Sierra County. 

Y. Solid Waste Contractor- means a person or company selected by the County through a 
competitive process to operate the County’s solid waste program. 

Z. Solid Waste Facility - means any public or private system, facility, location, improvements 
on the land, structures or other appurtenances or methods used for processing, 
transformation, recycling or disposal of solid waste, including landfill disposal facilities, 
transfer stations, resource recovery facilities, incinerators and other similar facilities not 
specified, but does not include equipment specifically approved by order of the director to 
render medical waste noninfectious or a facility which is permitted pursuant to the 
provisions of the Hazardous Waste Act and does not apply to a facility fueled by a 
densified-refuse-derived fuel that accepts no other solid waste.  

 
Section V.  Accumulation of Solid Waste, Litter and C & D Debris; Removal; Penalty  
 

A. No person shall permit to accumulate any solid waste, refuse, household waste, or C & D 
debris on property owned, leased or occupied by that person within two-hundred (200) feet 
of another occupied premises, except in covered water-tight containers made of metal or 
plastic.   

 
B. No person shall throw, place, dump, or dispose of any solid waste, refuse, household waste, 

or C & D debris on any road, street, gutter, sidewalk or alley, or on any public property or 
another’s private property. 

 
C. No person (whether owner, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) shall permit any solid 

waste, refuse, household waste, or C & D debris or any composition or residue thereof 
which is in an unsanitary condition or hazardous to public health to remain upon the 
property under the person’s control.  

 
D. No person shall cast, place, sweep or deposit any solid waste, refuse, household waste, or 

C & D debris in such a manner that it may be carried or deposited by the elements upon 



6 
 

any road, street, sidewalk, alley, sewer, parkway or other public place or private property 
within the County.   

 
E. Any accumulation of solid waste, refuse, household waste, or C & D debris is a violation 

of the terms of this Ordinance and is hereby declared to be a nuisance and is unlawful.   
 

F. Subject to any limitations or otherwise provided by law, the Sheriff or a County Code 
Enforcement Officer or designated employee is authorized, upon issuance of a warrant, to 
inspect any property where he has probable cause to suspect that unlawful accumulations 
of solid waste, refuse, household waste, or C & D debris may exist.   

 
G. If, upon the basis of such inspection, the Sheriff or a County Code Enforcement Officer or 

designated employee finds that a violation of Subsections (A) through (E) of this Section 
exists, he shall notify in writing the person in control of the property (whether owner, 
tenant, lessee, manager or other person) to correct such violation within a designated period 
of time, from ten (10) days up to thirty (30) days.   

 
H. Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any person, owner, tenant, lessee, manager or 

occupant of the property to correct any such violations within the time prescribed (or within 
five [5] days of the return of such prescribed notice as undeliverable if the notice is served 
by mail), the County Commission shall contract for the correction by the County, at the 
expense of the person, owner, tenant, lessee, manager or occupant in charge of the property.    

 
I. If the Sheriff or designated employee finds that the unlawful accumulation of solid waste, 

refuse, household waste, or C & D debris presents a clear and present danger to the public 
health, safety and welfare, and immediate measures are required to alleviate this clear and 
present danger, the County Manager may waive the ten (10) day notification period.   

 
J. Costs for correction of an unlawful accumulation of solid waste, refuse, household waste, 

or C & D debris shall be determined on the basis of labor hours worked, equipment utilized 
in the clean-up at a customary rental rate per day, plus any direct cost paid by the County 
to correct the violation.   

 
K. The County Manager shall maintain files of the inspections, notices and actions taken 

pursuant to this Section.  Costs incurred by the County in undertaking corrective actions 
shall be documented and the files shall be open for public review during normal business 
hours.   

 
Section VI. Illegal Disposal.    
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to dispose of Solid Waste or C & D debris in any manner other 
than disposal in a County Transfer Station, Landfill or as otherwise authorized by New Mexico 
law as described in NMSA 1978, Section 74-9-31 (B) (1995) relating to solid waste generated the 
property.  
 
 



7 
 

Section VII. Prohibited Materials and Acts.  
   
No person shall: 
 

A. Dispose of petroleum waste, sludge, domestic sewage, treated domestic sewage (which 
does not meet the analytical criteria of Section 704 of the Solid Waste Management 
Regulations; SWMR-4), septage, hazardous wastes, radioactive waste, lead-acid batteries, 
and infectious waste or any materials regulated under the Federal Toxic Substances Control 
Act, including PCB’s in County facilities.  

 
B. Dispose of bulk or non-containerized liquid waste unless; 1) liquid waste is household 

waste other than septic waste; or, 2) the container holding liquid waste is a small container 
similar in size to that normally found in household waste and the container is designed to 
hold liquids for use other than storage, and the waste is household waste.  

 
C. Place in County maintained solid waste facilities, any poisons, acids, caustics, chemicals, 

waste contaminated by infectious diseases, radioactive waste, toxic, highly flammable or 
explosive materials. Waste of these types shall be disposed of in accordance with any 
applicable state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating 
the waste. [SEMR-4(107)]  
 

D. Dispose of any junk parts or bodies of automobiles, tires, trees, or appliances containing 
cooling units in County facilities except in areas expressly designated for the type of 
disposal.  

 
E. Dispose of solid waste within Sierra County except in containers designated for waste 

disposal or solid waste disposal facilities. Discarding of solid waste on the ground or 
premises not designated for disposal will be considered a violation of this Ordinance. 

 
F. Throw, dispose, or allow by any other manner any solid waste or litter on any road, street, 

gutter, sidewalk, alley, or open space.  
 

G. Dispose of any materials other than household type waste in dumpsters for regular 
collection.  

 
H. Dispose of live animals in County maintained solid waste facilities.  

 
I. Dispose of dead animals in any County maintained solid waste facility except in areas 

which have been designated for their disposal.  
 

J. Dispose of solid waste in County maintained facilities without having first paid the proper 
assessment fee or obtained a non-resident or bulky waste permit.  

 
Section VIII. Solid Waste Disposal at County Transfer Stations.   
 
After the effective date hereof a person in Sierra County:  



8 
 

 
A. Shall not enter the area designated as a Solid Waste Transfer Station before the hour of its 

opening or after the hour of its closing or at any time on any day when said area is not open 
to the public. 

 
B. Shall not deposit, dump, or release garbage, refuse or waste materials of any kind in any 

area within a Transfer Station or adjacent to a Transfer Station at any time that the Transfer 
Station is not open to the public.   

 
C. Shall abide by the lawful instructions of any attendant as to the dumping of demolition, 

construction or other bulky materials including hazardous materials, toxic and radioactive 
wastes, motor vehicles, and appliances. 

 
D. Shall not deposit C & D waste, hazardous waste or tires (unless specifically authorized) at 

County Transfer Stations 
 

E. Solid waste deposited at any County Transfer Station shall be sealed in bags or closed 
containers 

 
F.  waste, dead animals, live pests, rocks, sand, dirt, C & D debris, toxic, highly flammable 

or explosive materials shall be placed in County solid waste containers, or be disposed of 
at County Transfer Stations.  Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any 
applicable county, state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person 
accumulating such waste.   

 
G. No yard waste, including grass and tree clippings, pine needles, leaves and cut weeds shall 

be placed in County solid waste containers or deposited at County Transfer Stations (unless 
specifically authorized on County clean-up days).  Such waste shall be disposed of on the 
site on which it is generated or in an approved solid waste facility, or in accordance with 
any applicable county, state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person 
accumulating such waste.   

 
Section IX.  Electronic Cards & Solid Waste Disposal Fees.   
 

A. Any person may purchase and utilize an electronic card issued by the County or by a Solid 
Waste Franchisee, to use when disposing of solid waste at any of the County Transfer 
Stations.   

 
B. An electronic card shall be utilized to pay for disposal, the card may be pre-loaded with 

amounts desired by the user.  
 

C. An electronic card must be presented and debited at the Transfer Station prior to disposal 
of any solid waste at that Transfer Station during posted business hours. 

 



9 
 

D. Each time a Person goes to a Transfer Station to dispose of solid waste, a Transfer Station 
staff member will debit the electronic card immediately prior to disposal of the solid waste 
in accordance with the Fee Schedule. 
 

E. When an electronic card has been drawn down to a zero balance, the Person will then be 
required to purchase more credits prior to disposal of any further solid waste at a Transfer 
Station. 

 
F. The County Manager or Solid Waste Franchisee is authorized to produce electronic cards. 

 
G. The County Manager or Solid Waste Franchisee is authorized to enter into agreements with 

retailers and other Persons to sell electronic cards. 
 

H. The County or Solid Waste Franchisee will replace lost or destroyed electronic cards with 
replacement electronic cards loaded with the same amount of credits that were on the 
electronic card at the time the card was lost or destroyed for a $10.00 replacement fee.  

 
I. A cardholder will be allowed to dispose of solid waste per the Solid Waste Disposal Fee 

schedule adopted by Resolution by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, 
and subject to a governmental GRT if the system is administered by the County or will be 
subject to County GRT and a 4% franchise fee if administered by a Solid Waste Contractor.  
The fees established by Resolution will also be subject to an annual increase based on the 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (garbage and trash sub index) (CPI-U)”. 
Mileage for Commercial Roll Offs will be subject to a fuel surcharge calculated on the  
U.S. Energy Information Administration’s U.S. On-Highway Diesel Fuel Prices on the 
15th of each month with a baseline of  $1.25, July 15, 2021. 

 
Section X. Uncovered or Unsealed Solid Waste Civil Penalty Fee.  
  
Any solid waste delivered to a Transfer Station that is uncovered or not secured in bags shall result 
in a $2.25 civil penalty fee to be assessed by the attendant against the electronic card. 
 
Section XI. Transfer Station Availability.  
 
The County Manager is hereby authorized to set the hours and days of operation for County 
Transfer Stations. 
 
Section XII. Dumpster Rentals.  
 
Dumpsters (solid waste containers) may be provided by Sierra County or a Solid Waste Franchisee 
for County functions such as the County Fair free of charge and hauled by the County.  Dumpsters 
are available for use by private individuals or business upon the execution of a rental agreement 
on the form to be supplied by the County or Solid Waste Franchisee for such purpose and upon 
the payment of the fees as set and authorized by the County Manager or per a Solid Waste 
Agreement with a Solid Waste Franchisee.  
 



10 
 

Section XIII.  Administration of this Ordinance.  
 

A. The County Manager, County Solid Waste Director or the Solid Waste Franchisee 
application and administration of this Ordinance by the Sierra County Solid Waste 
Department in any way involved in the administration of this Ordinance.  

 
B. Sierra County reserves to itself the right to execute any contract consistent with the terms 

of this Ordinance with any private, local, state or federal governmental entity to further the 
establishment, maintenance, management or supervision of its system to collect and 
dispose of solid waste generated in the unincorporated areas of the County.  

 
Section XIV.  Construction Sites & Transportation of Materials.  
 

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any 
construction activity in the County, enter into a contract with the County or Solid Waste 
Franchisee to furnish and place a container on that property or provide a fenced area of 
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste and C &D debris which may be 
distributed or removed from the premises or property by wind or elements. 

 
B. No person generating solid waste or C & D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any 

kind to be blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property at which the 
building permit was secured.   

 
C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, refuse, 

household waste, and C & D debris, including structural parts, from the construction site 
and contain their elements from scattering in the same manner as set out in section 10.2.  C 
& D debris or solid waste shall be removed and disposed of within five (5) days of 
completion to an approved solid waste or C & D debris facility.  
 

D. Any person hauling solid waste, refuse, household waste, or C & D debris shall do so only 
in a covered or enclosed vehicle.   

 
Section XV. Scavenging Prohibited. 
 

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C & D debris stored in or disposed 
of in a solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County. 

 
B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C & D debris from a solid waste container and 

scatter the same upon any public or private property.   
 
Section XVI. Ownership of Solid Waste. 
 
All solid waste generated within or brought into the county is owned by and is the responsibility 
of the generator, until such time as the waste is deposited in a landfill or approved solid waste 
facility, or removed by a Solid Waste Franchisee except where state or federal requirements 



11 
 

prohibit transfer of ownership. A licensed Solid Waste Contractor registered by NMED, who 
removes solid waste from a property, shall take ownership of the waste until it is taken to a landfill. 
 
Section XVII.  Powers of the County. 
 
In connection with the operation of a solid waste collection system, the Sierra County Board of 
Commissioners may: 
 

A. Execute contracts on behalf of the County with any municipality, county or other unit in 
government, including any Solid Waste Authority, or any private entity for the collection, 
transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated 
areas of Sierra County.  

 
B. Regulate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C &D 

debris by any person within the unincorporated areas of Sierra County. 
 

C. Establish, assess and collect fees directly or through its authorized agent in responsible 
amounts designated herein. 

 
D. Coordinate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C &D 

debris in consultation with the New Mexico Environment Department.  
 

E. Enter into an agreement with a Solid Waste Contractor to provide county solid waste 
disposal services. 

 
Section XVIII. Penalties.  
 

A. Persons violating this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed 
THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($300.00) and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each 
separate offense except as set forth in Paragraphs 14.2 and 14.3 below. 

 
B. Persons violating this Ordinance by discarding or disposing of solid waste or litter on 

public or private property in any manner other than disposing it in and authorized container, 
convenience center, transfer station, landfill, or as otherwise prescribed by this Law, shall 
upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($1,000.00) and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each separate offense. 

 
C. Persons violating this Ordinance by illegally disposing of hazardous materials or waste in 

any manner other than as provided for in the Hazardous Waste Act and this Ordinance, 
shall upon conviction be subject to a fine not to exceed; FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($5,000.00) and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each separate offense 

 
 
 
 
 



12 
 

Section XIX. Prosecution. 
 
Prosecution of violations of this Ordinance may be commenced by the filing of a criminal 
complaint or issuance of a citation charging the violation. Criminal Complaints or citations may 
be filed/ issued by the Sheriff, a code enforcement officer of the county or an employee or 
employees of the county authorized by the board of county commissioners to issue such 
citations. NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-3 (1993). 
 
Section XX. Franchise Required. 
 
It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any Person to engage in the business of residential or 
commercial solid waste disposal without a franchise from the County.  In addition to the criminal 
penalties set forth in the Ordinance the County may seek an injunction to require the Person to 
cease operations and to seek damages.   
 
Section XXI.  Repeal of Previous Ordinances and Resolutions.  
 
Sierra County Ordinance 16-007 is hereby repealed, as well as all other County Ordinances or 
Resolutions relating to Solid Waste Disposal which are in conflict with the above provisions, by 
the adoption of this Ordinance.    
 
Section XXII.   Savings Clause.  
 
If any article, section, paragraph, clause, word or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section XXIII. Effective Date.   
 
This Ordinance shall be effective the later of thirty (30) days from the date it is filed with the 
County Clerk after adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ORDAINED this ___ day of __________, 2025 in the County of 
Sierra, in the City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chair 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 



13 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy K. Whitehead 
Sierra County Clerk 

 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Regular Meeting-August 19th, 2025

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. Resolution No. 2025-71 AP
	B. Resolution No. 2025-72 Indigent Claims 
	C. Claim of Exemption 25-003 (Horak)
	D. Claim of Exemption 25-004 (Taylor)

	PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS
	C. Arveon Energy-Proposed Solar & Storage project in Sierra County 

	BOARD OF FINANCE 
	A. August Reconciliation 

	NEW BUSINESS
	A. Road Closure Request
	B. Record Destruction-Treasurer

	CONTRACTS-AGREEMENTS-PROCUREMENTS
	A. COC Agreement between Dona Ana and Sierra County 
	B. Amendment to Contract Between Dona Ana County and Sierra County 
	C. Mutual Aid Agreement
	D. Work and Financial Plan 
	E. Transportation Project Fund Grant Agreement 
	F. Amended Opioid Remediation Collaboration JPA
	G. RY Construction-Poverty Creek Fire Department
	H. Approval of Unauthorized Purchase-Rescue Tactics

	RESOLUTIONS-ORDINANCES-PROCLAMATIONS
	A. Resolution No. 2025-73
	B. Resolution No. 2025-74
	C. Resolution No. 2025-75
	D. Direction to Publish Title and General Subject Matter of Ordinance No. 2025-005


	Name of Applicant/Organization: New Mexico Spaceport Authority - Spaceport America
	Contact Person: Maja Perez
	Phone Number: 575-997-6808
	Email Address: maja.perez@spaceportamerica.com
	Mailing Address: 4605 Research Park Cir Las Cruces, NM 88001
	Name of Event: Unmanned aircraft test
	Event Description: Testing flight for an unmanned aircraft
	Date(s) of Road Closure: 9/18-9/19 or 9/22-9/26
	Time of Closure (start and end): 8am - 11am (1 hr max) 1 day only
	Start Time: 
	End Time: 
	Specific Road(s) to be Closed: A021 at Spaceport between front gate and Prizer Hill
	Location/Exact Boundaries of Closure: Spaceport front gate and Prizer Hill/Wallin Ranch
	Estimated Number of Attendees: N/A
	Proposed Detour Route: A-13 and Lewis road from Wallin Ranch
	Emergency Plan: Spaceport Emergency Protocol and off site coordination with 
	Emergency Plan Continued: Sierra County OEM if need arises by calling 911
	Traffic Control Plan: Sierra County Sheriff officers will be at each location of the 
	Traffic Control Plan Continued: closure to assist with the temporary road closure
	Public Notification Plan: Rancher has been notified and Spaceport Staff will be notified
	Public Notification Plan Continued: as needed.
	Insurance and Liability Coverage Continued: 
	Insurance and Liability Coverage: Client responsibility
	Additional Resources Needed (if any): N/A
	Additional Resources Needed (if any) Continued: 
	Date: 09/08/2025
	Road A: Off
	Road A/C: Off
	Road D: Off
	Sheriff A: Off
	Sheriff A/C: Off
	Sheriff D: Off
	Manager A: Off
	Manager A/C: Off
	Manager D: Off
	Road Comments/Conditions: 
	Road Comments/Conditions Continued: 
	Sheriff Comments/Conditions: 
	Sheriff Comments/Conditions Continued: 
	Date of County Commission Meeting: 
	Additional Notes/Conditions: 
	Additional Notes/Conditions Continued: 
	Check Box2: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes
	2: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes
	2: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes
	2: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes
	2: Yes




	Text5: 35304


